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Dr Ko, distinguished guests, fellow Committee Members, ladies
and gentlemen,

It is my pleasure to join you today for the 45th Annual General
Meeting of The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society, to celebrate the
achievements of the Society over the past year and to strategize
its future plan.

When the Society was established in the 1960s, cancer was
often seen as a dreadful disease with very few available treatment
options. Thanks to the strenuous efforts by generations of
medical researchers and healthcare professionals, various
breakthroughs in cancer research have been achieved and the
management of cancer has also been largely improved over the
past four decades. Nevertheless, cancer still remains a major
public health threat in Hong Kong.

Since the 1960s, cancer has been the number one killer disease
in Hong Kong and the number of cancer deaths and new cancer
cases has risen steadily. In 2005, about 23,000 cancer new
cases were registered in Hong Kong. The most common new
cases of cancer in men are lung cancer, colorectal cancer and
liver cancer; and the list for women is breast cancer, colorectal
cancer and lung cancer. In 2007, cancer claimed over 12,000
lives in Hong Kong, accounting for about one third of the total
deaths of the population.

While the Government will continue to spare no efforts to fight
against cancer diseases, aging population and lifestyle changes
pose huge challenges to this task. To rise to the challenges, we
need strategic planning and coordinated implementation. Our
strategy is rigorous surveillance, aggressive prevention and best
treatment.

We must know our enemy before we can win a battle. Government
has strengthened our surveillance of both cancer cases and
behavioural risk factors. Since 2005, we have reinvigorated the
Cancer Registry set up under the Hospital Authority to capture
data in a more timely and extensive manner and to monitor
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more closely incidence and mortality rates. Registry data are
stimulating cancer awareness and are being used by hospitals or
NGOs to plan services and resources as well as to facilitate cancer
prevention and control. We also set up in 2005 a Behavioural
Risk Factor Surveillance System under the Department of Health
to tap on the trend of different behavioural factors associated with
various diseases including cancers. Through the Surveillance
System, telephone survey is conducted every year to collect
information on health-related behaviours of the adult population,
including those closely linked to cancers such as smoking and
lack of exercise. The survey also covers information on cervical
cancer screening practices. This Surveillance provides useful
data for Government to plan and evaluate health promotion and
cancer prevention programmes.

Cancers can kill. So it is important to focus on prevention. We
have an inter-departmental and cross-disciplinary Cancer Co-
ordinating Committee under my chairmanship to strategize the
overall prevention and control of cancers for Hong Kong. Over
preventive strategy focuses on promoting healthy lifestyle and
minimizing factors inducive to cancers such as smoking, alcohol
misuse, physical inactivity, unhealthy diet and excess weight.
The Department of Health has recently launched the Strategic
Framework for Prevention and Control of Non-communicable
diseases (NCDs) to tackle heads-on NCDs including cancers.

We will be relentless in seeing through implementation of this
Strategic Framework. For this, | have set up a steering committee
putting together the best brains in the field, both inside and
outside Government, to oversee development and progress of
the implementation of the Framework. Expert working groups
will be formed to advise and inspire actions, draw up targets and
forge partnership between Government and various sectors of
the community.

In the meantime, we are strengthening existing services and
programmes for cancer prevention. Notably, we will continue
with vigorous promotion of a smoke-free environment and culture
in Hong Kong. By July 2009, our smoking ban will extend to
facilities like bars, massage parlours and mahjong premises.

On the treatment front, | am pleased to report that the Hospital
Authority has undertaken steps to strengthen the capacity of
its cancer services. Apart from the cancer centre of Princess
Margaret Hospital that opened last year, Hospital Authority will
also set up anintegrated breast centre and an oncology outpatient
clinic in the United Christian Hospital in Kowloon East Cluster in
2008-09 to provide one-stop, multidisciplinary services to breast
cancer patients. It is estimated that an additional 1,800 breast
cancer patients will be benefited each year.
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While expanding the capacity of cancer services, we are equally
committed to the quality of care. To improve clinical care for
cancer patients, the Hospital Authority will enhance provision of
new cancer drugs in all its oncology centres in 2008-09. It is
estimated that around 400 patients will be provided with new
cancer drug. In addition to treatment services, HA has also
been providing rehabilitation service and palliative care to cancer
patients through a community approach. Community nurses
will pay home visits to patients to follow-up on their treatment
in patients’ familiar environment, providing services ranging from
pain alleviation to emotional counseling. All of the above add up
to form the holistic support we render to cancer patients.

Partnership among the Government, private sector and the
community is the key to successful cancer prevention and
control. | am particularly glad to see that The Hong Kong Anti-
Cancer Society, being one of the Government’s leading allies in
the fight against cancer, has dedicated over the past 40 years
to promoting, coordinating and participating in anti-cancer
activities with commitment and distinction. This year, the Society
has conducted several press conferences on prevention of skin
cancer and cervical cancer. As for services for cancer patients,
the Society has organized a variety of activities such as festive
celebrations and support groups for home-based cancer patients
through its out-reaching recreational programmes. The opening
of The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society Jockey Club Cancer
Rehabilitation Centre, which is situated in the re-developed site
of the former Nam Long Hospital, further equips the Society
with more extensive facilities and human resources to deliver
rehabilitation services in the fight against cancer.

| wish the Society continued success in its quest for better health
of Hong Kong people. Thank you.
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It gives me great pleasure in presenting the Annual Report
of The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society (HKACS) for the
12-month period from 1 October 2007 to 30 September
2008 on (1) Organisation; (2) Jockey Club Cancer
Rehabilitation Centre; (3) Administration & Finance; (4)
Betterment for Cancer Patients; (5) Cancer Education; (6)
Cancer Detection and Prevention; (7) Cancer Research
and (8) Fundraising & Publicity.
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The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society is a member agency
of the Community Chest of Hong Kong and the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service. All funds allocated by the
Chest each year are used to meet part of the operating
expenses of the Society’s Administration, Cancer
Education and the Recreational & Diversional Therapy
Unit. The other expenses are funded by public donations
and sponsorship.
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Jockey Club Cancer Rehabilitation Centre £ 55 &7 R e .0

A)

Project Management Jii [ 45 Hil

The Project Management Committee continuedits intensive
efforts in managing the team of project consultants and
contractor(s), to drive the addition and alteration works
at the Jockey Club Cancer Rehabilitation Centre to its
completion.  The premises was handed back to The
Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society in late April 2008 with
a small list of outstanding items. The difficulties resulted
from some unexpected structural problems found after
renovation commencement were overcome. The Society
was extremely grateful to The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust’s supplementary grant of $12.87M to cover
budget shortfall for the same reason. The total grant
amounted to $109.23M.
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Members of the Project Management Committee
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Chairman FJ§: Dr. Ko Wing-man KB
Members ZZH: Mrt. William Yiu fi [ g St A

Dr. Poon Yeuk-foo EEES 0

Mzr. Davie Au-yeung lik 7 B S A4

Mr. Edwin Chiu Ngar-wing o e g e A

Dr. Pamela Leung RUIIHE L
Project Manager JHH&SHI:  Ove Arup & Partners Hong Kong Ltd. BRI TR R
Secretary f: Miss Iris Leung ZNE s NVH
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Hospital Commissioning %& [t Z5{fii

Services Planning Committee JJi§553 8|25 H

Membership of the Services Planning Committee 2007 /08
2007/084F MR B S i 2 B @ Z B A4

Chairperson F J: Dr. Pamela Leung

Ex-officio Membets
My 2B ENL:

Dr. Ko Wing-man

Dr. Poon Yeuk-foo

Mr. Edwin Chiu Ngar-wing
Mr. Davie Au-yeung

Members

ZH:

Miss Betty M.Y. Au

Ms. Christina Cheng

Mr. Cheng Chung-hing
Ms. Phoebe Fan

Ms. Kedo Kwan

Ms. Connie LLam

Mr. Law Chi-keung

Ms. Joyce Leung Kam-ling
Miss Camila Li

Mr. Hans Li

Ms. Alisha Ma Hsiao-hung
Ms. Angela Ng

Dr. Sze Wai-man

Dr. Tse Chun-yan

Mrs. Pamela Tung

Mrs. Agnes Wong

Dr. Yau Chun-chung

Ms. Wendy Yu

Ms. Bonnie Wu

Secretary fH: Miss Iris Leung

The 5 Task Groups under the Services Planning Committee
continued their respective activities even more diligently to
prepare for the commissioning of the Jockey Club Cancer
Rehabilitation Centre’s. In May 2008, works of the Services
and Charges Task Group, the Inventory Task Group and the
Facility Management Task Group were continued by the
Commissioning team. The Commissioning team members
were all full time staff of The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society
under the superior leadership of our Honorary Hospital
Superintendent Dr. Pamela Leung. This was so that the
hospital commissioning works could be proceeded in full
speed; in preparation for hospital registration and service
commencement. We were most grateful to voluntary
members of the Services Planning Committee, who
continued to give invaluable advice to the commissioning
team whenever they were being consulted.

8 The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society
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Reports from various Committees and Subcommittees

The IT Task Group continued to oversee the development B & Fl#% T 5/ B 4%
ZM 0 BAEHBERESGRERERD
MR RE A RAR ©

ofthe IT system, with special emphasis on the development
of the Clinical Information System for the JCCRC.
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Members J& H: Dr. Yau Chun-chung (Convenor) BRI e A (R TN )
Dr. Pamela Leung U
Dr. Sze Wai-man it L R AR
Ms. Phoebe Fan DERSE e
Miss Camila Li ZEUE/NVH

The TCM Task Group continued its work to pave ways
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for the proposed opening of The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer 2008 1A AR Z & K EB X E S EH

Society Hong Kong Baptist University Chinese Medicine

Centre in mid-January 2009, following the signing of a &FBHEE-E2

Memorandum of Understanding in January 2008 between & °
the Society and the University.

Members i Ei: Dr. Pamela Leung (Convenor) ZHERAEEREAEN)
Drt. Poon Yeuk-foo i E e Ean
Mr. Law Chi-keung E R vl
Ms. Alexandra Lo PR A
Drt. Sze Wai-man it 2B R BE A
Dr. Tse Chun-yan R

Besides the Commissioning team, a Quality & Risk
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Management Committee and an Infection Control BZE € —BERAKEERTRESNE
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Committee were also formed to assist with the hospital RFEEEZS
commissioning work. ffE o

Members of the Quality and Risk Management Committee
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Chairperson FJi:

Members ZZEi:

Secretary flH:
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Dr. Aye Kyu

Ms. Betty Au

Miss Iris Leung

Mrt. Simon Lam
Ms. Betty Chang
Ms. Eunice Chan
Miss Katty Leung
Mr. Kevin Chung
Mr. William Kwong
Miss Ritty Mak

Mr. Lau Wai Kit
Mr. Stephen Cheung

Mr. Andy Leung
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C)

Members of the Infection Control Committee
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Chairperson F J: Dr. Pamela Leung

Members ZZHi: Dr. Poon Yeuk-foo
Dr. Vincent Cheng
Dr. TK. Que
Dr. Aye Kyu
Ms. Betty Au
Miss Iris Leung
Mr. Simon Lam
Ms. Betty Chang
Ms. Eunice Chan
Miss Katty Leung
Mr. Kevin Chung
Mr. William Kwong
Miss Ritty Mak
Mr. Lau Wai Kit
Mr. Stephen Cheung

Secretary fi: Mt. Andy Leung

By early September 2008, Stage | of the hospital
commissioning works were completed and we applied
for hospital registration with the Department of Health, the
Government of HKSAR. An inspection by the Department
took place on 30 September 2008.

The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society Jockey Club Cancer
Rehabilitation Centre was successfully registered as a
hospital on 10 October 2008 with a Stage | opening of 28
beds for inpatients and various hospital services areas.
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The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society Jockey Club Cancer Rehabilitation Centre

i €5 1S SR iR D
The Mission 52 5

A caring “Home Away From Home” providing a wide range
of services required by cancer patients at different phases
of their illness and recovery; with special emphasis on
integrated Western & Chinese medicine, quality nursing
care, psychosocial and family support and rehabilitation.

10 The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society
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Members of the Hospital Governing Committee
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Chairman F Ji§: Dr. Ko Wing-man AR
Ex-Officio Member Dr. Poon Yeuk-foo rE e
PITREENRE: Dr. Pamela Leung RUHEE
Members ZZH: Dr. Gordon Au [k o] e s 2
Mzt. Eric T.M. Cheung R EE W LR
Mt. Peter Ko ey Y es
Ms. Alexandra Lo MR
Ms. Ma Yuet Har BHEX L
Mzt. William Po b e s
Secretary f: Miss Iris Leung N NV

Service to be delivered at the JCCRC ¢ &7k FE 18 rh. O Fd 1 1 Ik 55

Services to be delivered at the JCCRC are best summarized &S €EEREROTIRUNREEBE
by its Holistic Rehabilitation Program approach, taking EEZ2SUEETEIF » ARREER ARG
care of all 4 aspects of cancer patients: (1) Physical; (2) (1) & ~(2) £ ~ (3) # ~ (4) EIU{E S ESH
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Floor Plan of the Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society
Jockey Club Cancer Rehabilitation Centre
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Organisation Structure of
The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society
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(Special Post-period Report %2 11 1% 19455 7 i 15)
Soft Opening of the JCCRC 18 October 2008 &g H & J&he HE1E L0 s ERUH S 2008510 18H

A simple but meaningful soft-opening ceremony of the Centre —EfEMEENEESBEREFOR
took place on 18 October 2008 to mark a new milestone era of A &R 20084F 108 18H E1T » EIZ
The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society. SEOBHEET ANER -

14 The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society



Reports from various Committees and Subcommittees

Administration & Finance {7}z ¥

HRAGZHE

Membership of the Administration & Finance Subcommittee 2007/08

2007/08 ‘EEEITEL MM R B e R A A

Chairman ¥ J§§: Mzr. Edwin Chiu Ngar-wing

Members & H: Mr. Davie Au-yeung

Dr. Hubert Chan

Mr. Frank Jin Shui-seng
Dr. Pamela Leung

Mzr. Hans Li

Dr. Poon Yeuk-foo

Secretary fih3E: Miss Iris Leung

During the year, the Administration & Finance Subcommittee has
created and employed the crucial posts for the commissioning
of the Jockey Club Cancer Rehabilitation Centre, including the
Medical Officer, Nursing Manager & Nursing Officer.

The Subcommittee has also formulated the investment policy for
the Society and in view of the financial need of the Society during
the initial stage of the JCCRC, it has recommended the Society
to adopt the cash model of investment under which all cash in
hand are kept in deposits with different maturities within 1 year.

R HE R e

Wik 5 B R a2
PR EE 1
7T 5 e
RUIIHRE A
TR
PP Ko

NN

ERME - THAYEERESREETRE
EREROAIRYEZEERECET » LU
EHITRERR - REMEBRIE - EFE
EEREL BEERKEBELEREES -

ZEGNAETBMESRERERE -
BRENESSRBERERLDERRA
[ AEEZASERMBENRSKER
I — BEGEREAEIRNEFHE - U
—FERRNEREFR » LEESASHNIE

EE .

Recreational and Diversional Therapy Service FE&%iH %I

A new out-reaching recreational program, subvented by the
Community Chest of Hong Kong, has started for home bound
cancer patients on Hong Kong Island since in April 2004.

A variety of recreational activities were organized for home bound
cancer patients in collaboration with other Hospital Authority
hospitals. Festive celebrations and indoor activities were also
organized for the in-patients at the hospitals in the region to
alleviate their stress and tension due to illness; and to enable
them to enjoy the festive mood. In addition, the provision of the
volunteer service including hair cutting for cancer patients were
invited by Grantham Hospital. Regular home visits to cancer
patients under home palliative care, who lacked social support
were continued.

“Make a Wish” program was an unique feature of the out-
reaching program to allow terminally ill patients to express their
wishes freely with positive support.

B2004F 4855 - —BEE2FNBEEEA
B EPNIIMNREERE - REBERNE
FIEAER AR AR -

NATREREERNERSFERZ T
ERERZBDTFERNBERA - RERE
G ERRABREINER NEHER T
BITEIEY - UFEGMARRRERN
BAMARIGHE » REEMMAR=ZE 01
BERA - Lo NEESEHBERR
s RVEIE R AR E T RBERE
25 NMNET/RRZERZENERKRE
BIERARBERRIRE ©

"RENE , FEIRNRBELRBNER
B8 - BRVEZBRIR ARG O ATARRZM
PIFRE - B REEAZH B NEERT
B8 o
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Summer training courses for secondary school students were
organized to arouse public concern for the well-being and needs
of cancer sufferers. Visitation to cancer patients has also been
arranged to enrich the students’ life experience in showing their

concern for the ill and unfortunate fellow citizens.

NETNR PR B E BT RER R - DU
AR TIRERANBLNTR It
Sho NETERFBERTBERA @ 5

LIS E R ALE

INLABIR -

Statistics for Recreational & Diversional Therapy Service

RERE TR IR B A i | 2
01/10/2007 — 30/09/2008

Service atea

85 el

1

Festival Function for home care cancer patients

P S FRRERE SN B (3% 1 B BT )

Indoor activities for £t = NIGH) T :

Home care cancer patients of Ruttonjee Hospital
(F8 8y ISR
Home care cancer patients of Grantham Hospital

BRI SRR A

Cancer ward patients of Grantham Hospital

R BRI b 1 e K

Outdoor activities for home care cancer patients in
Hong Kong Island

e s T M) 5% P R A B (16 1) 5 9

A short term volunteer training course for
secondary students

Ay v ER A G {8 4 R 1 s T A R

Providing free hair cutting for cancer patients at
Grantham Hospital

P by LR RS BRI A 98 1k 0 2 T 2 M

Initiate “Make a wish” program to terminally ill
cancer patients

EOMAMEIE A TSR o A

Home visit for home-stay cancer patients under
palliative care

P E FAREE R A 2 5

Relatives Support Group and Peer Support Group
SRR o S 1N T 175 S 4 /N

16 The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society

No. of activities held /
event completed

BATISIRE /
ekt i H

4

39

11

30

200

KE o WRBAAES
Total no. of Durat%o.n
participants ngg%‘;;y
FEET YN it
2 hours
233 S
50
2 hours
21 e
124
4Y5 houts
183 A
3%, hours
80 A
2 hours
219 S
7 houts
30 A
2 hours
50 A
2Y5 hours
60 I
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Volunteers organized a recreation program for cancer Joint function with Palliative Care Unit of
patients during summer time Ruttonjee Hospital
BB 0 AN 6 28 TSR A8 O B P T A SR 036 1 e Y 4 20 B/ AL — R 5 TR 4

A well-known artist was invited to perform at Santa Clause gave Christmas presents to
Christmas Party discharged cancer patients
A N LT AE A5 7 e 2 R 2 — L RN AR A NPT AT PN

Carol singing to participants at Sai Yin Pun Western Participants enjoyed lunch buffet at
Community Center Tsim Sha Tsui’s restaurant
SRR AR 7 VG 2 M 4 T [ D0 2 22 L R R SR SELH LRI — [ AR L5z SR F B 7
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Discharged patients and their family members were

picked up to Tsim Sha Tsui East for sight seeing \fsited\Horlg‘A Kong Museum of Art
CORELEH B 80550955 A B — R £ SR ML SHEERHE

Visited Pre-Chinese New Year Flower Market

at Victoria Park Visited Nan Lian Garden at Diamond Hill
H [ H 5 2 8 A % R i 28 B AR i S A E Tl S B S 1111y e e [

Lunar new year function held on 6th floor Volunteers’
Centre, Jockey Club Cancer Rehabilitation Centre
FEQL N A e DI 7 ZE A5 ST B2 LS R Y LB L BB 7 2 BN — 25 e
HLAHDEBT BRI B

Joint program with Palliative Care Unit of
Grantham Hospital

18 The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society
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Summer training course for Secondary Students to

become volunteers Tutor taught students how to twist balloons
PR A A 3 T R R O R O

Trained volunteers launched a recreation program to day

Tutor demonstrated magic tricks to students care patients

PRI 2 5t ET B R S S0 45 15 2 TG A B4 0

Home-stay cancer patients were brought to Home-stay cancer patients enjoyed afternoon tea
Stanley for sight seeing at Repulse Bay
SR FEREAEIN A — il Hi 75 AR HE B FIEHEREIA N S AT BRI 552 AP
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Reports from various Committees and Subcommittees

BETTERMENT FOR CANCER PATIENTS (355 N\ A%

Membership of the Betterment Fund Subcommittee 2007 /08
2007/08 SFEE [ N ERBEEREE ] ZEAH

Chairperson FJ: Mrs. Agnes Wong

Secretary fH: Miss Wennie Wong

Members ZEH: Msrs. Chu Lo Shin-yee

Mrs. Prudence Lau Wing-may

Mrs. Esther Mak

Mrs. Judy Mauldon

Ms. Gloria Ng Yin Ping
Mrs. Laura Sin

Mrs. Helen Sinn

Miss Tan Lian-hong
Mrs. Carmen Yam

The Betterment Fund Subcommittee was originally formed to
administer “Betterment Fund for Cancer Patients” to provide
direct financial assistance to cancer patients for meeting their
non basic needs and to support group activities organised for
them. Later on, it also administers (i) the Prof. H.C. Ho Memorial
Assistance Program; (i) the Supportive Medical Assistance
Program; (iii) the Portia Cheung Breast Cancer Support Program
and (iv) the Late Madam Tsui Sang Fund. Applications submitted
by medical social workers on patients’ behalf, were vetted and
approved by the Subcommittee on individual merit.

The Fund has been supported by the Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust and public donations. The “Jockey Club Cares
for Cancer Patients” program under the 3-year Community
Project Grant (CPG) was designated to provide direct financial
assistance to individual cancer patients. The annual grant was
$440,000.

20 The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society
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During the year under review, a total of 172 applications were HEERFERN @ "HEEBRALEE, ES
received for the Betterment Fund of which 156 were approved.  H#EE172°R&EB)HAF » 166 R EFH -
Total disbursements amounted to $661,231: A H#Ee661,2317T » Hp

° 58% ($382,870.25) was drawn from the fund provided by the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
- Community Project Grant.
58% (382,870.257T) HEARERFGREGEHEES — L EBREFTIIRN -

o 27% ($178,731) from public donations.
27% (178,73170) HARIBERHPEN -

° 7.8% ($52,000) from Portia Cheung Breast Cancer Support Program.
7.8% (52,0007T)H "RFMERIREEERFTE ) PR o

. 6.4% ($42,000) from the late Madam Tsui Sang Fund.
6.4% (42,00070) B "EELELZLTES ) REMS -

° 0.8% ($5,629.75) from the outstanding balance of Brewin Trust Fund.
0.8% (5,629.757T) HEB BRESEEETNERBEREN -

Requests from individual cancer patients for financial assistance B RIEERABREBINEERIER
for obtaining extra nourishment represented 71.2% of the total {5483 HAN71.2% °
disbursement.

° applications to support various indoor and outdoor activities for cancer patients and their
families amounted to 12.2%. A total of 3,013 patients had participated in these functions.
EYRBERANMERAZINE AN INEEIRIHRF1512.2% » £ B3,013RRBELETEY -

° the remaining 16.6% were disbursed for granting requests for medical and rehabilitation

appliances and travelling expenses.
EYERNMERRARNXBENRB G NAY16.6% °

Total disbursement

32 ﬁ I’E‘ H Others
He
16.6%
Extra-nourishment
B EEN
Group functions 0
% 71.2%
12.2%
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Other Special Programs HAl1 3§55 H

I. Prof. H.C. Ho Memorial Assistance Program T {u] 358 Bz 40 & B 55 1A o

Bir3IR2006F2 B #HEHE - HEIER BN
BT 1,3165R E BN R » HAH1,095RE

Since the program was implemented in February 2006,
1,316 applications for assistance were received from the

six hospitals of which 1,095 were approved: HOE -
Approved Cases
% |¢fﬁ for the period 1 October 2007 to Apprizled %a]saers arccgg(l)glated
Hospital 30 September 2008 since Februaty
P 20074E10H 1 H 20084 H20065E2 5 i
9F130 F1 IR B i ¢ AL ES

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital

SRR IRT 2 B b
Prince of Wales Hospital

AR R R

Princess Margaret Hospital

Bt e

Queen Elizabeth Hospital
PRI AR b

Queen Mary Hospital

Tuen Mun Hospital

b
sk

Applications approved for full drug sponsorship
HEBL e 2= B AV B D 1 o

Applications approved for partial sponsorship

B o 5 0 B0 <52 2 1 i B P R D I

Applications approved for financial assistance

Mtk 2 2 BB <5 S B 1 v

No. of applications not recommended by medical
social workers

AVHE GBSk T HE I F v

Allocation for partial sponsorship

b b B 53 T

Allocation for financial assistance

EWE V)5 e

Total allocation #8475 il

22 The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society

27 cases 52
80 cases 5%
66 cases 5%
197 cases 52

21cases 5%

97 cases 5%

488 cases 5%

170 cases 5%
(40.58%)

79 cases 5%
(18.85%)

170 cases 5%
(40.57%)

31 cases 5%

$423,804

$1,728,485

$2,152,349

110 cases 52
248 cases 5%
150 cases 5%
525 cases 52

71 cases 5%

212 cases 52

1,316 cases 5%

330 cases 5%
(30.14%)

216 cases 52
(19.72%)

549 cases 5%
(50.14%)

42 cases 5%

$1,298,226

$6,902,631

$8,200,857
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Our heartfelt thanks went to the following four pharmaceutical ~ AR IEE G Ty INEREANTHWRNIZ
companies for their generous donations in-kind added up to ¥ @ XEBtRERIERELEY) » BELB

around $24,537,990.50 for 7 types of cancer drugs: "£24,637,990.507T:
1 Eli Lilly Asia, Inc. FB{#A 2\ ] $15,609,000.00
2 Roche Hong Kong Limited 5 FG K &% i 75 A B2 ) $4.889,030.50
3 sanofi-aventis Group £t JE % 9 1 B 45 4 | $2,919,960.00
4 GlaxoSmithKline Hong Kong 7l 5l 255 % $1,120,000.00

24,537,990.50

Approved applicants of Prof. H.C. Ho Memorial Assistance Program
P YRR B A0 B R a8l o R LI G

Ca.Lung FiifE

Ca. Colon/Ca. Rectum RIZ%E

Ca. Breast ZL.#8
Ca. Pancreas FRHEE
Lymphoma MEE

Diagnosis  Ca. Ovary 5B
xes Ca.Stomach B
CNS Tumour F&%E

NPC ElRE

Ca. Bladder [t

Ca. Bronchus ZREE

Ca. Prostate  RUFUAREE

0 100 200 300 400 500
No. of approved cases JEHEAZAN Z 8 H

A specially organised fund raising event: a walkathon on 30 [EsRHABAEM Y — (B3N EFEE -
March 2008 was dedicated to raising fund to sustain the  20084F3B30BEBTYRELITENR (&
Program. (Please see Fundraising & Publicity Subcommittee  ENFfBTINESAHEEZESHEM) -
Report section for event details).
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II.

HRAGZHE

The Supportive Medical Assistance Program T JiiiE i N\ 28 BB B& 5 4

This program was commenced in July 2006. It adopts the
assessment criteria and application procedures which are
basically the same as those of the Prof. H.C. Ho Memorial
Assistance Program except that the maximum amount of
sponsorship that can be granted to a successful application
is HK$200,000 (subject to extension at the discretion of the
Society in exceptional circumstances) and that applicant
would need to fulfill certain additional hardship criteria laid
down for this program.

Between the period of October 2006 and September 2008,
there were ten successful applications and the Society
has undertaken to sponsor all or most of the estimated
costs of the self-financed cancer drugs of the successful
applicants in question.

24 The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society
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HRAGZHE

ITII. Portia Cheung Breast Cancer Support Programme

IV.

Fofe i B e LR REB R Bt o

This program, Portia Cheung Breast Cancer Support
Programme under the Betterment Fund for Cancer
Patients, was established in March 2007 in memory of
Mrs. Portia Cheung Tse Po Ying who died of breast cancer
in February 2007.

The main objective of the Programme is to help and
support needy individual breast cancer patients and their
families in areas not currently funded by the Government
or other sources.

As at 30 September 2008, donations in a total sum of
$1,017,721 were received from the family and friends
of the late Portia Cheung. Up to date 24 Breast cancer

B IREBRALE, £ TES
ERFEREESTE, R2007FE38 B
37 0 PSR 200742 B R LB m AT p9 s a5
Bt o

il

ZArEINEEE E’Jz%ﬁb&?’f%ﬁ@%ﬂf
BENERAN—LTE  MZLEFTER
EEJIJ/_M%E&F Xﬁﬁﬂéfﬁéfﬂbﬁ’l

B E 20089830 Lz B EER B R
HERZTHREBNRENBBIERES
#1,017,7217C - ESHBULIIBEESE

patients have been benefited from this program with total ~ P iEtE » & BIAEZE &8 8£84,0007T °
disbursements amounted to $84,000.
Gift from the late Madam Tsui Sang " EBHUEEL 1345

In February 2007, the late Madam Tsui Sang had generous
willed $1M. of her estate as donation to our Society, of
which $600,000 was allocated to usage for drug assistance
to any cancer sufferers over age 65 via our Society’s Prof.
H.C. Ho Memorial Assistance Program (HCHMAP); and
the remaining $400,000 was designated for the Betterment
Fund for Cancer Patients.

As at 30 September 2008, there were 53 eligible cancer
patients of HCHMAP successfully received the financial
assistance sum up to $339,323, meanwhile, a total sum
of $42,000 were granted to 12 cancer patients from H.A.
hospitals through the Betterment Fund for Cancer patients
for obtaining extra nourishment.

2007428  EMEALLTREEEB LB

g EERB T TEERES - Ho
600,000 A B EAS T AIISBEIFTAC 2B

B2stE) - AR EY BRI L2 EBER
A 5 AR TN 2400,000T#5 TEEBRA
£5E, BB -

BUE2008F9H30H » HBLIZREERKRMN
T s B IZAC ,uﬁjjgﬁriu R AES
&Bh - #8813£339,3237T ¢ [FIEF » RE B[R
EERERMNI2ZEERAZE "HEE
RALEE ) ESEBIE2 000 TEMLEE
FEINEEM ©
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CANCER EDUCATION J#hE A H
CANCER DETECTION AND PREVENTION J#he £ 5z 7a b

Both Subcommittees work pro-actively to keep the public
& health professionals informed of the latest cancer-related
knowledge and the evidence-based means of early detection,
aiming at empowering people to take a sensible step towards

the direction of cancer prevention.

With invaluable support from experts & volunteers of all fields,
educational programs were able to reach the most needy public,
patients and health professionals in a most cost-effective manner.
Major events are listed below chronologically for your perusal.

FEIE A B SR SRR R TR W (E &= & 2 i
BREMM L ERERE TF @ HEEAR
KEXEE ASRUERFIBEEMME
MR ERRAVRATTE - BREMET
EERMTERRIE °

REESTMEXALTNETEENWE
T BEFESBUBRMELEEEF
MR - RAKEEEZAS - LTER
SREFERIIEERIREDMSEH -

Membership of the Cancer Education Subcommittee 2007 /08
2007/084 - E A B ZEH R B AN

Chairman ¥ J§:

Members ZZEi:

Secretary fibi:
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Dr. Daniel Chua

Dr. Ashley CK. Cheng
Ms. Cheung Pui Lan

Dr. William Foo

Dr. Fu Yiu Tung

Dr. Carol Kwok Chi Hei
Dr. Anne Lee Wing Mui
Mrs. Tammy Lee

Dr. Leung Sing Fai

Mrs. Gloria Li

Dr. Liu Chi Leung

Ms. Faith Liu Chun Fong
Dr. Liu King Yin, Rico
Dr. Luk Mai Yee

Dr. Ng Wai Tong

Prof. Frances Wong

Dr. Yau Chun Chung
Dr. Yau Tze Kok

Dr. Anthony Ying

Ms. Jacqueline Yuen

Miss Iris Leung
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Membership of the Cancer Detection and Prevention Subcommittee 2007 /08

2007/08% EE e hi ok Ml B FRIB R B T R B A 5

Chairman ¥ Ji§:

Members ZZEi:

Advisor Jg#[Y:
Secretary fi:

Senior Education officer

SR E A ERIR

Dr. Anthony C.H. Ying JEE TR B

Dr. Daniel Chua Tsin Tien SRR
Prof. Albert Lee ZERWMBIZ
Drt. Francis Mok Bk imbeE
Dr. Rebecca Yeung Mei Wan ¥ 3EE B4

Dr. Caroline S.H. Tsang v ST g A
Miss Iris Leung 2 INEINH
Mrs. Tammy Lee ZER R A A

Report for the period 1 October 2007 — 30 September 2008
2007510 H 1 H Z220085£9 H 30 H 0111 iy i o4

T
B

October 2007 — Cervical Cancer Program: Seminar delivered by Prof.
Annie Cheung & Dr. Keith Lo. 260 people attended. The talk was later
made into educational VCD and distributed to public and patients.
2007 10A— "F =GR : ERMARERMEER ) HE : 8
BERAREEBHRLEKEELETHE  HHF2608MREE - A
BBEDRBERAB CFREEMRLRERE

October-November 2007 — A 8-week Cancer Nursing Course was
organized jointly with HKU-PMH Cancer Education & Research Centre
and PMH. 203 nurses attended and 98% of them attained 85%
attendance. 94.7% commented the course as satisfactory to very

satisfactory.

2007 10ENMA—BBRERBRZNERBERMAFO ~ BRI
EREAEERAMN\ENNEEZERE  HB2302E&L2
B, HREAN A+ N\BERREXRERR/\+H BN+
HTEEHRBELTREREFERTHTE -

October 2007 — Press conference on Brain Tumour: Survey on “Public
Perception on Brain Tumour” was conducted by HKUPOP and results
were presented by Dr. Daniel Chua. Sharing from ex-patient, Miss Hui
and her mother was most touching. It was reported by several major

newspapers.
2007 10— THEAZ A, HERATRME : LFRBENSD
HASZAEBREREMERETHR ' HRYMENRA
FERAEER - FLEREEFNMAN SN SREHFEE D =1
M BIRAEEE - RABDHE - MABEEREHERE

Fw iR E 27



Reports from various Committees and Subcommiittees | %5 Z2E .2 #ith

November 2007 — Thyroid Cancer Program: Dr. Chow Sin Ming and Dr.
Ho Chiu Ming spoke live on Radio program $5% —25. Seminar was
delivered by Dr. Chow Sin Ming and Dr. Lo Chung Yau and attended by
340 people. The booklet was written by Dr. Chow Sin Ming and Dr. Ho
Chiu Ming.

2007FMA— "2HURBRREE, HE : FAERBEL AR
RRATESAEEHNE "BE—&, BRFNRRE - AEHEL
HERERBLETEAEBE  HEMEMREE - "RIEFMKR
K NMBFRIEEFREA RATREARE A HREE -

January-April 2008 — CADENZA Professional Integrated Oncology,
Palliative & Elderly Course: The HK Jockey Club Charity Trust approved
3 years funding to the Society to organize courses biannually for nurses.
The course comprises 48-hour lectures and field visits. 330 applications
received and 83 were registered. Post-course evaluation revealed 100%
satisfactory rate. The July-Oct course admits 62 nurses and is still in
process.

2008F 1A ZE4R— " ReME—EE - FELEANTEEERRE
HHEAEESEREETESEN - BREES4/NHFERNEH
28 - RN EESERE  ERBEERIABIZHBFEER
MBE - FRETHNIHBERNZEHEEAEREEZEENZEH ° 7
BZI0AMNZERREARIETT » HEZKEEABER -

March-Aug 2008 — Cervical Cancer Prevention TV Info-Series: Eight
10-seconds episodes were produced in March and subsequently
broadcast on TVB in May-Aug to raise public awareness on the subject.
Prof. Hextan Ngan, Dr. Grace Wong, Dr. Cheung Tak Hong, Dr. Keith
Lo, Dr. Ko Wing Man, Dr. Anthony Ying and Dr. Daniel Chua and Miss
Charlene Choi kindly rendered their professional input to the series.
2008F3AEBA—FEFEERBEREMRT : AFIHHEUETY
NEBEIOMMNERRINALNCA ESA MBI EHEERIIERE
o DIRETmRHZFARNET - FERSEARERR - SFHE
£ RBEELE - EXAERE - BAkXEE - BEEEE - 505
BENEEP/NMNEREENRIRHEXT R LB NB2H -

April 2008 — Cervical Vaccines Donation Scheme Seminar & Press
Conference: Conducted by Dr. Ko Wing Man and Dr. Anthony Ying and
attended by 195 people, including press, NGO representatives, social
workers and health workers. It was duly reported by newspapers and
electronic press.

200848 —F =SB EEBEE - BELFEHRMAE  BRX
XBALKESEELETRFNFTEZRME LA 1002MRSHE - B
BIEEE - 3F¢ﬂiﬁéﬁm,§\ HETFENEEAS  GEHYER
MRERETFEHEZRE
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April 2008 — Management of Treatment Side-Effects Program: Seminar
was delivered by Dr. Donna Lee, Dr. James Ho and Ms Jacqueline Yuen.
280 people attended despite treacherous weather on the day. DVD was
made out of the talk. A booklet was written by Dr. Carol Kwok.

2008F 4R — ' 2RBRBBAAR ) HE : EXBEEAFTTRE
A -MEXBERRRZZTIE  HAEBRTRERERES
MREAMBE - BEHRREREBIHERETR - 282508
BEEAE ) IMITRIASTFRELER -

May 2008 — Skin Cancer Program: Dr. HO Chiu Ming & Dr. Anthony Ying
delivered a talk to 120 public on 24 May. A DVD will be produced out
of the talk

200858 — " REEMTER RORR ) IHE « EXBRMBHELER
EEEBETHE L 1208TMRESE - BEBESREABIER
IKEHE -

Press conference was held to further raise the importance of sun
protection on 26 May. There were a total of 13 subsequent press
coverage, including Apple Daily, Ming Pao Daily, South China Morning
Post and Commercial Radio & RTHK.

5H26H RITHERME LUE—FTIREET R H MMEE B TEE ek
BEM - HEHAH EEEMBRMZEN » B85 - 5RA® - B
H-FERR  BEBERBBES

After Dr. Anthony convened with the HK Observatory, a short advisory message is now installed in the hourly weather bulletin
when UV index reaches 11 or above to remind the public to take precaution under the sun.

EEBLNFTERNABTERERLR  EEIMREBEREEE NHLLR  RXASGES/NHNREREPRHLE
REEBPALREHRENB THRIEENBE -

The Education Bureau supports our mission on sun protection and has
incorporated our guidelines in their “Outdoor Activities Guidelines” for
Schools and Teachers’ observance.

BERMEBIRHAGHTN "HHETE, AREE » HEEHES
MAE TSESNEBNIES] ) PEERRBANAFTEE

Letters were sent to 2,100 primary & secondary schools, kindergartens, uniform groups, youth centres and hospitals. 96 of
them responded requesting 37,000 copies of booklets and 2,300 posters. 11 schools requested talks and 6 of them already
conducted to 2,500 students & parents.

ZREN AGHEE2,100HZ22EH - NE - TR - FRER - BOFEROREL - EPAYCHE#E R BRI
37,000 " TARH &R ) H/VIF R 2,3005k T TARIRERE ) B - H1IMBERERREEEEE - ERABERoMB
12,6008 A E R R REITHLE ©
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June 2008 - Liver Cancer Program: Seminar was delivered by Dr. Lui
Chi Leung and Dr. Thomas Leung. 310 people attended. DVD was made
out of the talk. A booklet was written by Prof. Fan Sheung Tat’s team.

20086 — 2R BRHME ) RE : HEFRBANRERE
AEBEXBE - HB0RHRSE - BEERTREKEIER
BREDR - "IERE, ST LEARSENELER -

July 2008 — Cancer Screening, Early Detection & Risk Factors Seminar
was delivered by Dr. Law Chun Key and Dr. Anthony Ying. 325 people
attended. The good attendance demonstrated that the public are keen
to make good investment in their health for the future.

2008 7R — "BAEMNBRRER - HALERN ) BEAERESRE
RETEBEERE - H3268THERBE - HEMNAMBEIETRE
RRHBEIHRBRENERRRA -

July 2008 — Health Expo organized by Eastern District Council and
PYNEH: The Society was invited to organize a booth to education
public about cancer prevention. The Wheel of Fat/Fibre was proved to
be popular among receptive attendees.

008F7TH—AGEBEAREREGLRRELB/RABITRERS
MHREEESRRUEA - A ERREAENEENHBEEN - K
SREN TIE/AEEER ) FFEXTH R -

Sept 2008 — Gastric Cancer Program: Talk was delivered by Prof. Ng
Kwok Wai and Dr. Raymond Chan. 290 people attended. Mr. Leung
was confident to talk about his experience in the battle against gastric
cancer. An educational DVD will be made out of the talk.

2008F9H— M2HURHEE, HE : AREEHARLIRTERE
ERNTEBE - HA2002HREE - HEBE2EREEBHM
BEH MRS EBFIRERE - BARE - BRSNS R K
BEHE -

Sept 2008 & onwards — Cervical Vaccines Donation Scheme: This is to offer
the under-privileged young girls a chance to protect themselves against
cervical cancer. Applications came from 17 NGOs, including Family Planning
Association, Cancer Fund, Diabetic Association and ethnic minority group,
requesting some 1,000 places. After discussion, MSD donated 150 places
(2007-08) and 205 places (2008-09) to the Society. The first vaccination
session was held in Tin Shui Wai & Yuen Long. All recipients were well-
informed and consents were obtained. Pilot scheme was carried out in Po
Leung Kuk and is progressing well. Our thanks go to Dr. Chu Chop Lup and
Ms Chan Lai Ling for their support in the vaccination.

2008FF9O EHE — FEERE MBS « TR AR BEME
SRTREE—EENTEEENME - X 1 7REIEEFEE - 8iF
EERETEEED BEESE BREHSRVEERASSE
1B 1,000 RIS - KEEEE FERPRIGEE - ZARBED
Al 1501844 %8 (2007/08) F205(E %8 (2008/09) TAE - B m &R
B RKE R ITERERT - EAIFTEIE N6 B MIERERHIT - #E
IEF] - FTESBENESFAHEEEERSE - ALRBH R IE
A RRBR IR S BN EST R T/
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Cancer Screening & Health Counseling Project: It is funded by the Community Chest and targeted to launch
in August. An experienced nurse takes on board the task of providing individualized counseling for those with
family history of Nasopharyngeal, Colorectal, Breast and Liver cancers or Hepatitis B carrier. Our objective is to
assist people to evaluate their own health status, assess cancer risk, empower them to materialize healthy living
habits and implement regular early detection program. Advice & information given are evidence-based and in

accordance with international standard. Sessions are running from HKACS office and HA Oncology Centres.
PEEE N EARE - ERBEEEARTED)  CRAFSHEET - —RERZBLEETRBEMIIF > /B
SMRfE - KGkE - IELATENCERATRERE @ RESHREBRAENNHE - BNEHEmEFHE
RENETE - BREARNE - EERELEEANEETERERETS - FTAREMNEZLEN
BHRENNERBENAGSHEGE - RECTAS LEREERE NMEBERPIRET -

Press Exposures

I e

Spokesperson & Topic $ 5 A\ M H

Dr. Anthony Ying on Diet for Cancer patients

AT 2 — R N I BK £

The Society’s exiting material on General cancer

A G BUERE BOR

Dr. William FOO on Bladder Cancer
{8 KRR B 1 — T e

Dr. Anthony Ying on Cancer Risk & Night Shift
WSS T 5 — B R SRR 1Y il e

Ms Faith LIU on Palliative care
JBIHE TS I — 57 3 Bl

Dr. Anthony Ying on Mobile Phone and Oral Cancer
WO 8510 B . — R P B o

Dr. Anthony Ying on Cancer Screening and Early Detection

REETERETE — Jaine 35 2 B LD

Dr. Anthony Ying on Sun Protection & Skin Cancer
W5 R 1 — 2 B ot L 5 e

Dr. Anthony Ying on Skin Cancer
B TE B TE — PO

Dr. Anthony Ying on Thymus Gland tumour
M0 B 1 — W DR v

Dr. Anthony Ying on Skin Cancer
B TE B TE — BERTHE

Dr. Anthony Ying on Benefits of Vitamin C to Cancer Patients

W, TR — #E 1 e BURE

Dr. Anthony Ying on Skin Cancer
B TE TR TE — PO

Dr. Anthony Ying on Paget’s Disease of the Nipple and Breast

FRE 00 R 1 — Dl s s (FLEBURT 2L )55 o)

Dr. Anthony Ying on Parotid gland Cancer & Use of Mobile Phone

FRE T 5 P — RS B 5 ) o i 1Y 5

Press {SBL RS

Apple Daily
B H

Ming Pao Online Education Web
B A

Associated Press News Agency

B E R L

Apple Daily
B H

HK Economic Times

Ming Pao
Ak

Ming Pao Weekly
WA

Sudden Weekly July issue
BR—JHTHH

A 1 ST RS Aug issue
Az i SR eSS H T

HK Economic Times

AT H ¥

TVB Pearl Report
MEARAENL T WIEREZE

HK Economic Times

AL H#

HK Economic Times

A AERE T H

HK Economic Times

AL H#

Oriental Daily
5 H
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Website: We endeavour to provide public a comprehensive pool of
information on cancer aetiology, manifestation, diagnosis, treatment,
nutrition, early detection and prevention. We also provide evidence-
based advice on some hot issues concerning cancer to allay public
anxiety.

AEPEE : BfBHEE—EFESREKRRA - R - 28 - 5E -
28 RHHRAREGMENFETHREIE - AT RN EBRS
BT A B REAE R ZAPTRE IR AL ML 2w B DUR A R RV SRR

School & Community Education Program: 30 talks have been conducted
at schools, community groups and workplaces to 6,000 students,
parents, teachers and public. 548 telephone and 220 e-mail enquires
have been handled.

EREEENRBEREE : AER - ttE/NER T ESAT LR
T 30MEERE - 16,0004 - RERNABRALTRE - KEEDRE
B 548/ 2R E [z 22018 EE 5LE BB E N E R (E H CIFE -

Regular Health Columns: The Society maintains constant
exposure in the weekly health column on “am730 Daily” and bi-
monthly Rehab Express. Currently there are 25 different kinds of
booklets/VCD/educational tools available and we distribute over
60,000 items to hospitals, clinics, patient groups and libraries
upon their requests annually.

EHMEREMR  A2NARFEam730HRNEEAER "B, &
ERT TEREE, RUEBBESN - BRIASHRBEH25RAE
BEN/NIF/AR/BEIETHRNEMNER - ABEFRAEH
433 760,000 dh B TERx ~ 2F7 - mMABRBMESE -
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Activities of Cancer Comrades T [u]#& A 1 W55 H)

The “Cancer Comrades” was formed in 1996 under the Cancer
Education Subcommittee by a group of recovered cancer
sufferers who volunteered to provide advice, support and care to
cancer sufferers through experience sharing, hotline service and
cancer education programs.

Committees and Subcommittees | $%Z% & & Z Hith

TR A , BITR 19964, H—EIERE
EEARN  RAQBEHNEEELETH

o fBFILUERIBRANED » BBK
BOZ RREABEEERE quilJ**
B BERABERAREEELSE
LI BeaiE -

Membership of the Cancer Comrades 2007/08
2007/084F 1% TIIEE N\ 4 REfH

o B 22 1
kwai — GREEFESGE

B T fig 2t
SR B ek
o 3 e A
020 R 2 £
BREL L
sl e n

Ms. Josephine Yuen Pui-jane  Z{ii¥Z %+

Chairperson ¥ Ji: Ms. Cheung Pui-lan
Vice-Chairman Fil] 3 Ji#: Mr. Edward Tang Wah-
Members ZZH: Ms. Eva Chan
ﬁ— Mr. Cheng Chung-hing
= Mr. Ho Kim-bor
[EEE A ' - Ms. Rosanna Lau
k i Ms. Windy Mak
\1? Ms. Tracy Wong
"—_w ' Ms Patricia Leung Pik-kwan BLE i S i

(i) Telephone counseling 78 i i il
The Cancer Hotline, manned by Ms. Cheung Pui-lan and

Mr. Tang Wah-kwai had received about 100 calls. It took
more than 15 minutes on average to answer each call.

In addition to answering public’s enquiries, Ms. Cheung
Pui Lan has also committed herself to visiting, meeting
and giving support to cancer patients by emails on needed
pasis.

(ii) Educational Book J#REZE HIW

During the report period, Ms. Cheung Pui Lan has
consolidated materials, maintained contacts with cancer
patients, wrote cases of cancer patients for an educational
book to be published by Cosmo Publisher.

B TREA RERMBEL L KEERL
A—REFRMBEN TERAR, o BE
R RIRARTE - £ LA AR Eﬁ%
MI00ZEEREN » KESEAEAE
FRTBEE162E -

FREIZARHE uEESu’Eﬂ% ?Eﬂ%%ﬁi?‘
BFEERTSRS - @REEBEEIRM
SXETEERA °

EERME - RMAZ T ERREZE
BHEER - AR ABELFE UEER
—ZIKL/UETT/\@%?/*% EARREEHE T
W TR BEREEE TN -

(iii) Activities undertaken by members of the Cancer Comrades

PRI 5 B2 B
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(iv)

Date H i
Event 7% 1i:

No. of Participants
S N\H:

Membert(s)
SHEH:

Date H i
Event 7% 1:

No. of Participants

SHE AR

Membert(s)
SHEH:

11/05/2008

Chinese Music Concert sponsored by Si Yuan Foundation

RIS @B PR h R |

Served as guest performer in the concert. About 1,300 participants
attended the concert

FEREE A B BT RBFAE © V61,3008 k28

Ms. Cheung Pui-lan
ok fil i 22+

17/05/2008

Attended the 12th Anniversary Celebration of [ %&.00 2 K H#EE in Macau
AL HH RS TR P 2202 R e 6 T AR SR SR
About 250 participants including cancer patients, doctors, nurses, social workers,

government officials of Macau as well as cancer support groups from Taiwan and Hong
Kong had attended the celebration

R 250 A WA A ~ B ~ L ~ TR E I BUG E B E G AR
HE e X P 2 U

Ms. Cheung Pui-lan
ok fil i 22+

15th Anniversary Dinner TI#& A 1 551 e 34 5

The 15th anniversary dinner of Cancer Comrades
was held on 23 August 2008 at Eaton Hotel. 146
participants included members of Cancer Comrades,
staff & volunteers of the HKACS, cancer patients & their
relatives, doctors, nurses, social workers and cancer
groups from Macau and the Oncology Units of the major
hospitals in Hong Kong got together to celebrate the joy
of life and shared a lot of fun and laughs.

CANCER  COMR
15TH ANNIVERSARY DiN

4 't?_:!tn ;
[
_ t, "."ﬁ

August 2008 - Cancer Comrades 15th Annual Dinner:; Dr.
Ko Wing Man, Dr. Poon Yeuk Foo, Dr. Pamela Leung, Dr.
Anne Lee, Dr. Tung Yuk, Ms. Betty Au and Ms. Iris Leung
joined with 146 cancer patients, volunteers, doctors,
nurse, social workers gathered together to celebrate the
joy of life.

34 The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society

"ERAL £+HE
23R TR R EIS 1T
mTRBA KB - AEBERET -2
EBELERE - ~ R~ TR
BRFIRAE TR E G BRI FIRVEER
ABBEBRE —EEMRMANEEED

BFEBRENKRESH
o 146 IR HER

FHEIMEBEER -

20084 8H —
AENEXKXEA -
IBEA
L RR/NE/NEE 146 ZFEERA
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HEAMNS o
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CANCER RESEARCH @RS

Membership of the Cancer Research Subcommittee 2007 /08
2007/08 4B i i 7622 H @1 22 R A B

Chairperson FJi§: Dr. Anne Lee Wing Mui sk igEE 4
Members ZZH: Dr. John Chan [osé [ B % A
Dr. CK. Law AR AL B AR

Membership of the Cancer Research Vetting Panel 2007 /08
2007/08 4 EE#REWE E T 22 L1 2 LA W

Chairperson FJi: Dr. John Chan [oe o] 2 5 A

Members ZZH: Mr. Davie Au-yeung ik 5 2 5 e A=
Dr. Anne Lee Wing Mui kg R
Mrs. Agnes Wong wiGEHEL L
Dr. Anthony Ying JE G T B A

This year the Subcommittee did not invite applications for cancer &Y EBERASKWSFREMETE LR
research grant in practice of limiting the annual cashflow to  $600,000TCHIAFEZHET » AN SE
$600,000 (Please refer to the table below - Cashflow for 2008). REBFEBIEEMTNERE FBERET
Therefore a new round invitation of applications will be carried 2% — 2008FHR—1H) - HIt - FT—W
out at the beginning of next year. BB R R REET -

Approved Research Grant’s Disbursement U##LINWESEHE H 32 H

No. Name of Applicant Study Title Duljation of Total Grant Cashflow for  Accumulated
ﬁgﬁ $%}\ﬂ£% m%ﬁ E%ﬁ Pro]eft apPrOVed 2008 Grant
WEgEsHE 2 101 ] 200858 BBEY
1 Dr. Larry Baum, A novel cancer screening method 11/06 - 10/08 $150,000.00 $0 $150,000.00
Assistant Professor, using mismatch binding proteins (2 years Z5H124F)
Dept. of Medicine and to detect mutant, tumor-derived
Thetapeutics, The Chinese ~ DNA in body fluids
University of Hong Kong A e P9 S5 Tk 1 2 b 5 1
F ke e 9 4 42 o AR W 1 S B Y
R i R AE T B2 2 — {0 A M i 2 5 9k
(CA R E
2 Prof. Tang Leung-san, The Association of 07/06 - 06/08 $100,000.00 $0 $100,000.00
Nelson, Pharmacogenetics and (2 years Z5H124F)
Dept. of Chemical Chemotherapy-induced
Pathology, Toxicities in Breast
The Chinese University of Cancer Patients receiving
Hong Kong Chemotherapy
LGN FLI I I ZE R AR 5 —
LB BB 2% (BRI R AT I BELEE AT 1 R )
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No.
iR

Name of Applicant
HEs NIt H

Dr. WM. Lee, Anne,
Cluster COS, Dept.

of Clinical Oncology,
PYNEH

LY RPN S
R WP T A8 e 1 =

Dr. Roger Ngan,
Consultant, Dept. of
Clinical Oncology, QEH
PR 5 R 7
R[] 2

B E R

Dr. Cheung Siu Tim
Assistant Professor
Dept. of Surgery, HKU
FHERBNRIER
BB

U SFILSR

Dr. Ng Kwok Chai, Kelvin
Associate Consultant
Dept. of Surgery, HKU
FHEAREIRIER

R W 55 2

Dr. Michelle K.Y. Siu
Research Assistant Professor
Dept. of Pathology, HKU
EREYN=ITFLES
BB (W 5%)

[ PN R

Study Title
SR

Randomized trial to evaluate the
therapeutic gain by changing

the chemoradiotherapy from
concurtrent-adjuvant to induction-
concurtent sequence, and the
radiotherapy from conventional
to accelerated fractionation

for advanced nasopharyngeal
carcinoma (NPC-0501 Trial)

P RG0SR FE AT PR
ok 2 B ] A 1 ) SR T
SRR R 2 (7] 25 193 8 12 51
AEMTHCR IR, Bt B R T A T
SRR L DIV 5 B IR
T o HE LTl B AR 1Y
22 (NPC-0501 HI3k)

Combine targeted therapy with
chemotherapy for liver cancer
treatment

TETRT R  L%e 5 G g s
gk

Prognostic significance of
alpha-fetoprotein and albumin
messenger RNA in patients with
hepatocellular carcinoma treated
by radiofrequency ablation: A
prospective study

Aol P 4 1A 1 6 1 EERHRNA
TR 05 AT A 5
BRR

p21-activated kinase 4: a
prognostic and therapeutic
target for ovarian catcinoma?
215 AL E 4:— M1 51 L9061
ARG ?

HRAGZHE

Duration of
Project

gt E 239

01/06 —12/12
(7 years Z5II74E)

10/07 - 09/08

01/10/07 -
30/09/10

01/10/07 -
30/09/08

Total Grant Cashflow for  Accumulated

approved 2008 Grant

AR 20085 8EK  RBAEM
$450,000.00 $145,200.00 $435,600.00
(for 3% yrs.

HEH B3V 5F)

$200,000.00 $100,000.00 $200,000.00
$198,370.00 $60,000.00 $138,370.00
$296,137.00 $214,707.00 $296,137.00

Total Z%Y ©  $1,394,507.00 $519,907.00  $1,320,107.00

In February 2008, Prof. Yuen Po Wing, Clinical Professor of
Torthinolaryngology, Division of Otorhinolarygngology informed
us that the research project on “The evaluation of the diagnostic
efficacy of EBV DNA and RNA in the nasopharyngeal brushing of
patients at risk of nasopharyngeal carcinoma” had to be aborted

due to his resignation from his post.

The Subcommittee has

decided that his grant of $200,000 be carried forward to the next
round application.

36 The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society

KEZ_ABREREIIPNEBREERRRE
BHFRNEAE » ARMMABEEmMMER
IEETMR 2007 FEMASRFENIBE
HaE— THERERES TR ALK TR
AEBREBEERBERBANZEZEBNE
Rz e, NIER - KEESHE
% 2 AEBI200,000TTHYBE SRS B B
M—WmEBEEREREE A -




Reports from various Committees and Subcommittees

HRAGZHE

Reports on the cancer research projects 352 & B RE WFFE 5 )i

1 Project title JH H 44 f§:

2008 Progress Report On A Novel Cancer Screening Method Using Mismatch Binding
Proteins To Detect Mutant, Tumor-Derived DNA In Body Fluids

2008 =4 JEE 3 5 el T — T R JRohE AR 7 3K, P D 2 AT A 1 b

MR IR 25 H Y 28 28 DNA

Principal Investigator ~ Associate Professor Larry Baum

BV AN-E

Chinese University of Hong Kong Shatin, Hong Kong

WAL BH BB, WHI, TP SORER AR ZEPnin Heas 2

| thank the Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society for their generous
support ofthis project viaa Cancer Research Grant of HK$ 150,000
which began 1/11/06 and will end 31/10/08. Cancer is caused by
mutations, which can be found only in cancerous cells. To detect
cancer early, we aimed to develop a method to screen human
liquid or waste such as blood or feces for mutant DNA shed
from cancer cells, to allow pre-symptomatic cancer screening
and thus surgical or other treatment with a much higher cure rate
than is now possible.

The method entailed extracting DNA of target genes from human
fluids or feces, heating and cooling to re-form DNA duplexes,
and enriching for heteroduplexes—DNA sequences that are
mismatched due to a mutation—to allow detection of mutations
by sequencing. Immobilized mismatch binding protein can
perform this enrichment by binding DNA heteroduplexes while
allowing other DNA to be washed away. To test the method,
short, single strands of synthetic DNA, with or without mutations,
were combined to form homo- or heteroduplexes that were then
mixed at low ratios of hetero- to homoduplexes and enriched for
heteroduplexes. A single base deletion was enriched by a factor
of 29, and a mismatch was enriched by a factor of 2.

Next, we tested the method on PCR products, which are longer,
double strands of DNA that are amplified from purified, human
DNA. However, no enrichment was achieved. One possible
cause of failure is the presence of artifactual mismatches in the
PCR primers, which are short strands of synthetic DNA used to
initiate ampilification in PCR. For a substantial minority or even a
majority of individual primer molecules, at least one synthetic DNA
error may occur somewhere within each molecule. These errors
act like mutations, forming mismatches that cause the duplex
to be enriched. These erroneously-enriched duplexes dilute the
enrichment of mutations within the targeted region, perhaps
making them undetectable. To avoid this potential problem, we
designed PCR primers with a special DNA sequence that attracts
a DNA-cutting enzyme (Mme |) to cut off the entire primer region
of the PCR product after amplification has been completed.
Another possible source of artifactual mismatches is inaccurate
amplification in PCR; we reduced this potential problem by using a
high-fidelity PCR enzyme (Pfx) for amplification. However, both of
these measures failed to lead to enrichment of PCR products.

KRS E BN ESHEERMIER RN
XF o WRIRIBEBEIZE— RN 1/11/06
BRIANE A FY31/10/ 0845 ERAIHK$ 150,000/
EEAEMTFRE R - ERZEE ZIBEMRR
W R EETE A BB R o B L Rz
i BT ENRE—FEHEEHEANR
BESNEEY) - EMMKRSNER W IBARE R
HRENREZEZE (ONA) » OFFE
AR B8 A B A E 65 A2 0 (K] HE B ARl o E A
EERNERXRA IR AERS -

TEEBERAMN MR EFEIRRNEER
KIHIDNA, INZEAA1S ANEEAHDNA S5 »
THESEZR®HE — AN —ERxREmE
ARIDNAFFSER. — RFFLUBEFIEZR®
R - HEENERELELREER
HEAEDNA R & 3 [F) B A 5T E M DNA# #
EBRITEEZEE - BTYRRAITE 8/
B - S EKDNAEE - BRBRE » e
HAARKRRS IR - 3E DB R
ERFAREBEEENMMEEAERE
o —EEmERAWESE Y295 b
B—EERFEEE T 2(5 -

BE BMEAR Y REERSBEERE
(PCR) EmL  BRERA - DNAEEE » 375
BE#AIH - AHIDNA-BR » EF
BEEIR - KM — B RENEREARE
ERISEEC B IRTEPCRS| - » 58/ \BY A B DNA
# » W NTEPCRAAS| ZHIBTE/EA - 1T KB
PR EARLZEERNSIFHT @ &
D — B BDNASE SR AT IS AT R B F 2
NV R - ELHERRIBUNEE > LE
By EEER - ELERMBER
HNEBEHRETEEZEREEBCARENEE -
N EEMEEFRARETN - &Y BEE
BB E @ BMRET Y B 3I/DNA
FFBIHIPCRS|F » MK S| —{EDNATIEIBE R
(Mme)ELIBRFEIBTE1E A SE AR PCRE mAY
@S| TFE - B—AREMN ARBIEELR
AR B IEPCRAA RN ERERYIBIEIER ;5 FiM
AR A EFEREREENPCREEXR
(PIX)BAEBEBIENHEE - B2 » EME
M RNACERPCRE AMEE o
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Perhaps some component ofthe PCRreactioninhibits enrichment.
To examine this, we performed enrichment with synthetic DNA to
which was added either PCR reaction chemicals or only water.
Enrichment occurred in both conditions, thus the PCR chemicals
were not inhibiting enrichment.

Since we could not identify the reason PCR inhibited enrichment,
we have started to pursue an alternate approach which avoids
PCR before enrichment, instead using hybridization to extract
target genes from human DNA, then forming duplexes and
enriching for mismatches, and finally amplifying by PCR. The
procedure is as follows:

=

. Purify genomic DNA from tissue

Cut with restriction enzyme to produce DNA fragments of
reasonable size

Purify desired sequence using immobilized DNA probes: both
sense and antisense

Melt DNA off probes and isolate it

Melt purified DNA and allow sense to hybridize with
antisense

Enrich mismatches using immobilized mismatch binding
protein as before

Amplify enriched DNA by PCR

Sequence to observe degree of enrichment

We do not yet have results from this approach, but we will
continue this research after the end of the grant period.

2 Project title JH H %4 i§:

FLI: A BE YR (B 5E

Principal Investigator

FHEPENE: of Hong Kong

NHFPCRREMFELRAMNELEE - AY
FAEEME - B0 YPCR RIEFRHLEY)
K HBKEIEHKDNA » T TEE - EF
BAETEMERE » AIEPCRREARRL
BN HEIHZTE o

BMRETEIR T —F RaHPCR5I F LI —1E
EECEM IR TS - BATIFREM AR

DNAMIPCRIZTEIER » MR A 5| F 58
EENZERTREARE - —BARBHER
BRTEZHIMPCR - RMERMEZIER
EREAHIDNARREN B ZER » AEBEFHE
WANEZHE » NELIPCRIBIE - A2
BESENT :

1. eAEA AP IR ERE A 4HDNA.

2. ARH MBS ELDNAER S
A B BIDNA B B o

3. MABE(WDNAZE S 4L B B A B
(FﬁﬁE@E%DNA%D&ﬁDNA)

4. WS LN IF4E{L B HIDNA S ER -

ERANN

5. WR 4L FHIDNA » FIEFEMN R =
DNAZEZZ o
6. MABEMBEEAEEAESHERTF

5 (FRBIEM L) o
7. FAPCRJT/A#EIE = AIDNA -
8. Al » WEREMBE -

BMERBANRARGEESESRRNE
BER  BEREXBEPESEREHM

RAD B XA

The Association of Pharmacogenetics and Chemotherapy-Induced Toxicities in Breast
Cancer Patients Receiving Chemotherapy

— ((bsesE S Rl £ P BB R R R 1)

Prof Tang, LLeung Sang Nelson, Department of Chemical Pathology, The Chinese University

éf%tlﬁijtﬁw BESNBLER R BR5E A Hii%

Co-investigator

LFEIZEN B University of Hong Kong

%’?%*Ikm@f“m?ﬁ%%lﬁmlﬂfﬁ
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Prof Winnie Yeo, Associate Professor, Department of Chemical Pathology, The Chinese
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Chemotherapy is a main stage treatment in many breast cancer
patients. However, such treatment is associated with toxicity
leading to side effects including symptoms of vomiting. Anemia
(low haemoglobin), and pancytopenia (low white blood cells) are
important side effects due to toxicity of chemotherapy to the
bone marrow. Presently, it is not able to predict which patient will
have more severe toxic effect and therefore, all patients receive
the same empirical dosage of cytotoxic drugs.

These cytotoxic drugs are cleared or metabolised by the body
by groups of enzymes. It is recognised that genetic variations
in single base of the genes of these enzymes could affect the
ability of the body to metabolize the cytotoxic drugs. Therefore,
the purpose of this study is to analysis the genetic variations in
these enzymes and their inducer genes in Hong Kong Chinese
and their association with clinical toxicity after chemotherapy in
breast cancer patients. In the long term, the goal of this and future
studies of this kind is to enable prediction of body response to
drug and therefore, patients will be given personalised medicine,
that is dosage or regimen of drug tailormade to persons’ body/
genetic makeup.

“Summary of the project”
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Report of Progress (up to June 2008) i HEIE NG DL (#220085E6H )

The project has been commenced since 1 June 2006.

Up to June 2008, we have completed follow up of 80 patients
during their chemotherapy course which is consists of 4
cycles of treatment. In our recent study, we investigated the
association of a functional SNP in PTGS-2 (encoding for the
COX-2, cyclooxygenase-2) and clinically significant neutropenia
after chemotherapy among breast cancer patients because
COX-2 regulate the expression of MDR-1 (P-glycoprotein)
which affect cellular transport of many cytotoxic drugs and thus,
their cytotoxicity. COX-2 is the inducible isoenzyme for which
we have previously identified a putative functional SNP in the
coding gene for COX-2, PTGS-2. Eighty Chinese female breast
cancer patients were studied and monitor throughout the cycles
of treatment by a standard doxorubicin-cyclophosphamide
regimen. A 3-UTR SNP (rs5275, Ex10+837 T>C) in the PTGS-2
gene was genotyped by PCR-RFLP as described previously. In
the study cohort, 16% of patients developed clinically significant
neutropenia requiring a change of treatment cycle/regimen, 12
of them were homozygote TT genotype while 43 out of 60 of
those not affected were homozygote. The genotype of patients
with clinically significant neutropenia were compared to a sample
of 244 population controls and the allelic frequencies of T allele
showed a borderline significant difference (0.96 in neutropenia
group and 0.81 in population, p=0.06).

AHIFEEr 2B (2006868 1H) -
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2 ) ER 3FFFRHEEE—EEXEKRS
REM (rs5275)
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Preliminary findings #JJ25 %5 %

This 3-UTR SNP was a potential functional SNP located within a
region which had been shown to influence mRNA stability. The
T allele had been implicated for regulation of COX-2 activity. It
is postulated that prostaglandin metabolisn may contribute to
the growing dimension in pharmacogenetics of chemotherapy
toxicity.

These results have been presented in an abstract in the XX
International Congress of Genetics in Berlin, Germany (July 12
— 17, 2008).

3 Project title JH H %4 1§:
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A proposal to determine the therapeutic gain by induction-concurrent chemoradiation over
concurrent-adjuvant chemoradiation and the benefit of adjuvant chemotherapy in NPC

patients with residual EBV DNA following primary treatment
A T 51— FS bR, B TS — WL o S e DL R B 52 1 )
BTG RR A PR AR EBYRN 75 DNAJK A it DA B AL 538 2 1 80 3

Principal Investigator

B0 N =L 7 s BT T /AL 2 i B 2

Dr Anne Lee Wing-mui for Hong Kong Nassopharyngeal Cancer Study Group

Two prospective randomized multi-center studies FJEFGIETE ~ BB ~ % h.Owf5%

Nasopharyngeal carcinoma is the 7th commonest cancer in Hong
Kong: 944 new cases were detected in 2005. As people at the
prime of their life are mostly affected (peak age-specific incidence
being 30-70 years), the impact is especially devastating. Recent
researches in Hong Kong have shown that chemotherapy in
addition to standard radiotherapy improves treatment outcomes,
particularly for those patients presented with advanced disease.
With these encouraging findings, two randomized studies (0501
and 0502) were initiated in 2005 under the sponsorship by the
Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society. The purposes of these studies
are to determine the optimal way of delivering chemotherapy and
radiotherapy; and whether additional chemotherapy could help
those patients who fail to achieve normalization of EBV DNA level
after initial treatment. All six oncology centers in Hong Kong are
actively participating in these studies; with additional contribution
from Sun Yat-sen Cancer center at GuangZhou. Recruitment to
these studies is still ongoing and about 260 patients have been
successfully randomized in 0501 trial; and another 25 patients in
0502 trial. We expect that enrollment would be completed by the
end of 2013 and interim analyses are currently underway.

4 Project title J8 H 44 1§:

Investigatorlff5E N\ B:
of Hong Kong

ERERESEFLMNNEREE 1
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RO 2B 5E mIBZT » 050150105024/
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Combine targeted therapy with chemotherapy for liver cancer treatment

R LR & DS g AR L
Dr S.T. Cheung, Assistant Professor, Department of Surgery, The Hong Kong University

RS BLER R B A R IR 6 1 1
Prof S.T. Fan, Department of Surgery, The Hong Kong University of Hong Kong

TR ERSMRLEE 2V LIRS
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First Progress Report 1517 #EJE #ith

HB K
H 5t

Liver cancer is the second major cause of cancer death in
China. Surgical resection is the mainstay of curative treatment.
However, liver cancer is usually diagnosed at an advanced stage
and so precludes curative treatment. Chemotherapy remains the
principal approach in treating unresectable HCC. However, both
single-agent chemotherapy and combination chemotherapy have
shown marginal efficacy. A new treatment strategy is essential to
sensitize the cancer cells to chemotherapeutic agents.

Background

We have demonstrated the overexpression of granulin-epithelin
precursor (GEP, also called progranulin, acrogranin, or PC-
derived growth factor) in primary liver cancer, and that GEP is a
therapeutic target for liver cancer treatment. We hypothesize that
GEP-targeted therapy will enhance the sensitivity of hepatoma
cells to chemotoxic agents. In a pilot study, we demonstrated that
GEP-targeted therapy in combination with cisplatin could further
enhance treatment efficacy. We propose further pre-clinical
studies to examine the optimal regimen for cancer treatment.
Specific Aim 1: To examine the functional effect of anti-GEP
mAb in combination with chemotoxic agents. Specific Aim 2:
To evaluate the treatment efficacy of anti-GEP mAb treatment in
combination with chemotoxic agents in mouse model. The study
will improve the treatment strategies for liver cancer.

Research Progress Hf5ciEfE

HRAGZHE

e RS _SEERTF - Ba
B FHIBREREENGIE - AWM
FREAERBREBA R E LK > LIFY)
FRIREE R I A AT - Z)RERNEE
IR IER > (tREREREENF A ° —J
B FAwEEECERAIKEAGIE
BARE « B — BN E EH@”?(KE?
BYNRENTEHELE  ERVE o

BAGRBRERMEFED " ERRK
%wm (X738 "B ARRTEERR
1) BBERE > NMERTY EERIER
u@%/%ﬁﬁmﬂ% MR urt
RENERRE,, AEREMNEEATMURES
st 2ESBONBRE » ME— i
Bt ERAYE T ERENEA
BEIZES AR, EAIES - ATLUE—F 1R
FERR - HMIEZEERANRIKBINE
%EFW EESEBRRENTE BEAB
B AREERAMU "TRERER
h%m% %hmjém% EMR ; 2B
— o DIRERRFIHEESE SN Tt
&%m%mﬁﬁﬁﬁ Jm%ﬁ =18

MREEXRES AEMEERE -

(1) Neutralization of GEP by anti-GEP mAb further enhanced the anti-proliferative effect induced by conventional

chemotherapeutic agents

DL THi ke R A ni i ek it o vhAl T R RN 0 o HE 2B A AR Y R Y U S

FHE

Different classes of drug compounds were examined, including
doxorubicin  (anti-neoplastic antibiotic), cisplatin  (alkylating
agent) and 5-Fluorouracil (5-FU) (anti-metabolite). Low dose of
chemotherapeutic agents inhibited the proliferation of Hep3B
cells by MTT assay (Figure 1). Importantly, combination of low-
dose chemo drugs and anti-GEP mAb further enhanced the anti-
proliferative effect compared to single-agent treatment.

BT RRERINESZE - BEMRH
EHERRAE) - EHURLE) A
BRIBIE(FALSY) o EM T T Ho@isrh »
(7 8 L R EE 0 41 T Hep3BAT Mo iy 3
B(E—)  BEEWE  LBBEAE » &
mEmEA THERERERIRE
MEE | . E— SR T FURTEER -

(2) Neutralization of GEP by anti-GEP mAb further enhanced the apoptotic effect induced by chemotherapeutic

agents

PLTHi g SR A ni i RN o PRl T B EOR AN 0 o HE 2D TR REE R I B TR
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Tumor growth is an imbalanceof cell proliferation and cell death.
Thus, the role of anti-GEP mAb in cell apoptosis would need to
be elucidated. Anti-GEP mAb treatment alone at 100ug/ml for
24 hours demonstrated no effect on cell apoptosis compared
to control treatment (saline control or non-specific mouse IgG
control) as examined by flow cytometry. The in vitro observation
was consistent with our earlier in vivo study that anti-GEP mAb
treatment on Hep3B xenograft in mouse model revealed only
decreased proliferation but not significant change in apoptosis
by TUNEL staining [Ref 1]. Nonetheless, combination of anti-
GEP mAb at 100ug/ml and cisplatin at 4ug/ml demonstrated
synergistic effect on induction of apoptosis (28.4%) compared to
single-agent treatment (6.7 % and 15.8%, respectively) (Figure 2).
We will continue the pre-clinical studies to examine the optimal
regimen for liver cancer treatment.

Figure 1 [&—
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Figure 1 Neutralization of GEP by anti-GEP mAb A23 further enhanced the anti-proliferative effect induced by conventional
chemo-drugs. a, Doxorubicin at 0.025ug/ml in combination with anti-GEP mAb at 100ug/ml further inhibited the cancer
cell proliferation compared to single agent treatment. b, Cisplatin at 0.5ug/ml in combination with anti-GEP mAb at 100ug/
ml further inhibited proliferation compared to single agent treatment. ¢, 5-FU at 0.25ug/ml in combination with anti-GEP
mAb at 100ug/ml further enhanced the anti-proliferative effect compared to single agent treatment.

Bl— MU' EREENRAEEKRNE, b/ T EREENEAE — R Y EH LB Y T RA LIS
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Figure 2 Neutralization of GEP by anti-GEP mAb further
enhanced the apoptotic effect induced by cisplatin in
Hep3B cells. Anti-GEP mAb alone has no effect on cell
apoptosis compared to control treatment (saline control
or non-specific mouse 1gG control), while in combination
with cisplatin could sensitize the cells to undergo apoptosis
compared to single agent treatment.
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Research output 5k

Invited Lecture. Cheung ST (presenting author) and Fan ST. From Gene Expression Profile to Identification of
Molecular Target Granulin-Epithelin Precursor for Liver Cancer. The Ehrlich Il — 2nd World Conference on Magic
Bullets. Oct 3-5, 2008. Nuremberg, Germany.

Reference 27 W Jgk

Ho JC, Ip YC, Cheung ST (correspondence), Lee YT, Chan KF, Wong SY, Fan ST. Granulin-epithelin precursor
as a therapeutic target for hepatocellular carcinoma. Hepatology 2008; 47:1524-1532.
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Principal Investigator
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Co-investigator(s)
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Prognostic significance of alpha-fetoprotein and albumin messenger RNA in patients with

hepatocellular carcinoma treated by radiofrequency ablation: A prospective study

A YR £ 1 T R R GHURINA LT S0 Sk 0 ol S i R 57 PR RS8R

Kong
T R ER AL R R ) 6 A D [ i

Yang Zhen Fan, Assistant Professor,
Poon T.P. Ronnie, Clinical Professor

NG Kwok Chai, Kelvin/Consultant for Department of Sutgety, the University of Hong

Fan Sheung Tat, Professor for Department of Surgery, The University of Hong Kong
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1.  Project Objectives HI1

11

1.2

Objectives as per original application J5iafEH H 1)

To evaluate the prognostic value of circulating AFP
and albumin mRNA levels in patients with HCC
treated by RFA

Revised objectives &2 & H Y

To investigate the prognostic value of circulating
HIF-1 oxand HIF-2 @« mRNA levels in patients with
HCC treated by RFA

Reasons for the change

Detection sensitivity of circulating AFP and albumin
mMRNA was not satisfactory.

2. Research Activities HJf5c 3G

2.1

MR MRFBEANAEBEMRNALETE
R 535 R AR I B BB TR AV /E
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FE TR SR H R TR BB TAR AV A
BRRA

R I R BA T F O B 1 S SRRNAR B
BRI

Research activities in relation to the project objectives that were carried out

T WEE G )

We have collected 76 blood samples from 38
HCC patients with RFA treatment, and 10 blood
samples from normal subjects and cirrhosis
controls, respectively. HCC patients have been
followed-up for more than 6 years.

PP E AL 38 E A e B E UL Y 76(E MM
BER (—FRERFGER - —FK
BREEAER—A) - B5 - BHAED
AIAEIE S M RE(CH R UER Y 108 MR
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2.2

2.3

6 Project title JH H %4 i§:

Principal Investigator

B0 WN ¢

Co-investigator(s)
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Areas addressed and results expected during this reporting period

ANAF B EUBRA R

Albumin was detectable in 23 out of 76 blood
samples collected from HCC patients, 1 blood
sample from cirrhosis control and 4 blood samples
from liver donors. AFP was only detectable in 2
blood samples from HCC patients, and none in
normal and cirrhosis controls. Since the current
protocol using either AFP or Albumin as parameters
had low sensitivity, we switched to hypoxia
inducible factor-1 & (HIF-1 o) and -2 o« (HIF-2 o),
two transcriptional factors that modulate cancer
stem cell gene expression, to investigate whether
these two genes could more sensitively represent
circulating cancer cells/cancer stem cells. A
significantly higher sensitivity was observed when
HIF-1 o and HIF-2x were used for detection.
In addition, mMRNA level of HIF-2 a« was higher
in blood pellet collected from HCC patients than
those from cirrhosis and normal controls.
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Areas to be addressed and results expected in the next reporting period

DR R Y )

During the next reporting period, we plan to
analyze the correlation between circulating HIF-
1o and HIF-2a levels and prognosis of HCC
patients with RFA treatment. In addition, we have
been prospectively collecting blood samples from
another HCC patient cohort to validate the available
data. We are planning to submit the findings of
current study to next year’'s American Association
for Cancer Research Annual Meeting.

University of Hong Kong
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p21-activated kinase 4: a prognostic and therapeutic target for ovarian carcinoma?

p2 LIEALEE 1A 4 (Pak4): BF Sy 72 AN RE I ) ?
Dr Michelle K. Y. Siu, Research Assistant Professor, Department of Pathology, The

é%kmfﬂﬂmn%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%@i

TR BN BRI B %

Prof Annie N.Y. Cheung, Departments of Pathology, The University of Hong Kong

Prof Hextan Y.S. Ngan, Obstetrics and Gynaecology, The University of Hong Kong

T v R B e L BHU A L 1%
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Project Objectives e H 1)

Ovarian cancer is a lethal gynecological malignancy. To improve
patients’ survival, it is important to identify novel prognostic and
therapeutic targets. In this study, the role of p21-activated kinase
4 (Pak4) in ovarian cancer progression was investigated. We
demonstrate a significant association between increased expression
of Pak4 and its activated form, phosphorylated (p)-Pak4 Serd74,
with metastasis of ovarian cancers, shorter overall and disease-
free survival, advanced stage and high grade cancers, serous/
clear cell histological subtypes and reduced chemosensitivity. Pak4
overexpression was also observed in ovarian cancer cell lines. Pak4
and p-Pak4 expression were detected both in the nucleus and
cytoplasm of ovarian cancer cells, in vitro as well as in vivo. Stable
knockdown of Pak4 in ovarian cancer cell lines led to reduced
cell migration and invasion along with reduced c-Src and ERK1/2
activation and decreased matrix metalloproteinase 2 expression,
demonstrating a physiological link between Pak4, c-Src, ERK1/2
and MMP2. Conversely, ectopic Pak4 overexpression enhanced cell
migration and invasion in a kinase-dependent manner. This is the
first report revealing the association between Pak4 and important
clinicopathologic parameters, suggesting Pak4 to be a significant
prognostic marker and potential therapeutic molecular target in
ovarian cancer.

Nasopharyngeal Carcinoma (NPC) E:IIJiJ&;

The research on Nasopharyngeal Carcinoma (NPC) is led by Dr.
Law Chun-key of the Department of Clinical Oncology of Queen
Elizabeth Hospital and financially assisted by our Society.

HRAGZHE
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(A) Inflammation related gene discovery in NPC patients treated with an anti-inflammatory

drug — CelecoxibfE{Ji fJ CELECOXIB
PUSSET T e LR Jps A\ rh 2% B Bl

We continue to perform gene chip analysis in the
nasopharyngeal tissues obtained from a cohort
of nasopharyngeal cancer (NPC) patients before
and after treatment by an anti-inflammation drug,
Celebrex followed by radiotherapy with or without
chemotherapy in collaboration with University of
Hong Kong. More cases were studied and RNA
was extracted from the cancer and normal tissues.
It was then amplified to generate sufficient quantity
of cDNA for gene chip experiment. The cDNA was
labeled with two fluorescent dyes, Cy5 and Cy3 for
genetic hybridization experiments onto gene chip.
More than half of the cases were performed. Interim
analysis of the results will be carried out in this larger
number of cohort to select reliable gene markers
correlating with this malignancy and treatment so
that further applications in diagnosis, prognostication
and treatment can be explored. Subsequent RT-
PCR experiments will be performed to confirm
the tumor and treatment specificity of these gene
markers. Functional analyses will also be carried out
to examine the roles these gene markers play in the
carcinogenesis process of NPC.
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Identification of protein markers by protein chip array profiling

8 VR JES B R MR B 1

Two areas of proteomics work were being studied
with one area in NPC and the other in lymphoma.
Proteomic analyses of chemotherapy related
peptide markers in NPC are being carried out in
this project. A number of peptide markers which
are associated with chemo-response have been
found. A manuscript is under preparation to report
this finding. More and more studies indicate that
cancer is a kind of chronic inflammation and
cancer patients share many inflammatory proteins
or peptides with patients who suffer from bacterial
or viral infection and presented with inflammation
symptoms. We have performed serum proteomics
analysis in lymphoma and SARS patients. In this
study, we compare the proteomic data generated
from the lymphoma patients and another set
of data generated from the SARS patients with
severe inflammation. We am to find specific
set of markers associated with lymphoma and
inflammation diseases. Markers common to
both were also examined to try to delineate
the carcinogenesis process involving chronic
inflammation. A manuscript is under preparation to
report this finding.

CpG island microarray analysis of cancer

CpGESIR VT R BE Rl &ty 50 et

DNA methylation of tumor suppressor genes is a
frequent event occurring in cancer patients. Using
high density CpG island microarray technology, we
examine the methylation status in 244,000 gene
promoters. A large battery of methylated genes
were found. By means of methylated specific
PCR and bisulphite sequencing technologies,
we are now confirming the results. The transcript
expression of these genes are also examined by
RT-PCR. We will report the findings of this study
when the quantities of the methylated genes found
reach a substantial level and their methylation
status is confirmed.
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Publications of Radiobiology & Cancer Research Unit
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1.

Yip TTC, Ngan RKC, Cho WCS, Law SCK. Proteomics approach in cancer diagnosis - Nasopharyngeal
Cancer as a model. Biomedicine & Pharmacotherapy (Invited Review (2007).

. Cho WCS, Yip TTC, Ngan RKC, Yip TT, Yip C, Chan JWM, Tsang DNC, Chan JKC, Cheng WW, Ma VWS,

Lim CKP, Lim WWL, Law SCK. Differential and common serum proteomics in cancer and inflammation
disease: A comparative analysis in lymphoma and SARS using Protein Chip array profiling. Proceedings of
the Annual Meeting of the American Association for Cancer Research (AACR). 2007 (Abstract).

Timothy TC Yip, Wiliam CS Cho, Roger KC Ngan, Tai-Tung Yip, Wai Wai Cheng, Victor WS Ma & Stephen
CK Law. Oncoproteomics analysis of cancer associated serum peptides — problems & opportunities.
Proceedings of the Fifth Chinese National Human Proteome Symposium (CNHUPQO) 2007; (Abstract).

Timothy TC Yip, Wiliam CS Cho, Roger KC Ngan, Tai-Tung Yip, Wai Wai Cheng, Victor WS Ma & Stephen
CK Law. Oncoproteomics analysis of cancer associated serum peptides — problems & opportunities.
Proceedings of the Annual Symposium of Hong Kong Proteomics Society and Satellite Meeting of CNHUPO
2007. (Abstract).

Wiliam C.S. Cho, Timothy T.C. Yip, Roger K.C. Ngan, Tai-Tung Yip, Christine Yip, Harry H.Y. Yiu, Wai-
Wai Cheng, Victor W.S. Ma, Stephen C.K. Law. Serum proteinchip profiling provides response prediction
for nasopharyngeal carcinoma before and after chemotherapy. Proceedings of the Annual Meeting of the
American Association for Cancer Research (AACR) 2008 (Abstract).

. Timothy TC Yip, Roger KC Ngan, Stephen CK Law. Epstein-Barr virus & Nasopharyngeal Cancer - Roles of

the viral genes/antigens in diagnosis, relapse monitoring & treatment. Proceedings of the National Infectious
Disease Conference and 4th CAACM Clinical Microbiology Symposium. September 2008 (Abstract).

. Timothy TC Yip, Roger KC Ngan,, Stephen CK Law. Cancer diagnosis, drug response study and inflammation

analysis by serum proteomic profiling. Proceedings of the Annual Symposium of Hong Kong Proteomics
Society November 2008 (Abstract).
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FUNDRAISING AND PUBLICITY 5%z HEJ5

The committee has devoted efforts in 2 major areas: () promoting ERNEBZESH NN M AHESEL)
the works of the Society, including brand-building, promotion  JBEMIIE » (VBEERER - EE 2B
of the Jockey Club Cancer Rehabilitation Centre and (i) raising EREFLEBEE > (VAATEERKE
funds for supporting all areas of works of the Society including MUEBIASFEEE @+ BESBEARER
various assistance programs and public education programs. SEIRARABIES

Through different activities and events with tremendous support  BEEFEATRETRANESR) - ML
from experts and volunteers, we enlist the community’s help so ¥ Y AREIZERHES) S 518 - &EF%%

that cancer patients and their families can continue to lead a KRERAEBESZENBIER  #HEZZEK
meaningful life with quality. AL °

Members of the Fundraising Subcommittee 2007 /08
2007/08 AFEE G 5F I HERG R R Z B4

Chairperson FJi§: Mrs. Chu Yeung Pak-yu Patricia, BBS K41, BBS
Members ZZH: Mr. Edwin Chiu Ngar-wing S e R e A

Dr. Philip Fung L

Dr. Ko Wing-man =¥ 974

Mr. Law Chi-keung L I v

Miss Connie LLam M4+

Dr. Pamela Leung RUIRE A

Mrs. Selina Lo ) E R S

Ms. Alisha Ma Hsiao-hung W1

Dr. Poon Yeuk-foo W REE

Dr. Wang Ming-chun Elizabeth, SBS EWHZ A, SBS

Ms. Bonnie M.W. Wu WISt
Secretary fibi¥ : Ms. Iris Leung N N
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MAJOR FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES DURING THE PERIOD
FROM 1 October 2007 to 30 September 2008

H120074F 105 1 H 522008579 )7 30 H 11l e 5 3k i) 2 235 53 16 )

Island Scout Trail Walk cum Walk for Life 2008 75 J& ¥ S 317235 11172008

1

Following the great success of the first Island
Scout Trail Walk cum Walk for Life last year, the
Society Co-organized the same event in 2008
with the Scout Association of Hong Kong HK
Island Region and the Rotary Club of Hong Kong
Harbour, with the aimed at raising funds for our
“Prof. H.C. Ho Memorial Medical Assistance
Program” which provides financial assistance and/
or drug sponsorship to cancer patients who are
unable to afford the recommended drugs listed as
Self-Financed ltems in the Hospital Authority Drug
Formulary.

The event was held on a warm fine Sunday, 30
March 2008. More than 2,300 participants took
part in the event and they were free to choose
from the three trails of 8kms, 25kms or 50kms.
Despite different starting-points and starting-
times, all routes led to the finish-point at the Peak.
In the closing ceremony, we had the great honour
to have Mr. Anthony Wu, Chairman of Hospital
Authority and Mr. Paul Tang, Permanent Secretary
for Labour and Welfare as the Guests of Honour to
give speech and to bestow awards and souvenirs
to participants and sponsors.

We were most grateful to the unfailing support of
the Scout Association of Hong Kong HK Island
Region and the Rotary Club of Hong Kong Harbour,
both had contributed to the great success of the
event and raised over 1.3 million for the Society.
Besides the fund raised “Island Scout Trail Walk
cum Walk for Life 2008” had also successfully
aroused public’s concern of cancer sufferers with
financial difficulties.

= T8
J ‘o"., ABRERGEENS

225100 ko Ceremony

AERFRNERESTITES - 5F
ASREBEERGEBESMBNEBEE
KRt EESN TEBEEERITEIFENT
2008 ) BESTEE R T ARBHEAL
BB E , BELKE  PEFEIRHEL
BRINEYER  BEBRERABER
eI REY MM BE B RAEEY) -

BESITEEN2008FE3830H — @K
EBEANERRRET 882,300 2H
E MPITEBINBESAE ~ 268
KE0AE » ZITEUEHERESHNE
R HAREEEE  BIEILTEMARET
REETRE NEseL  BEREERE
FRERLEERS T REANREEIMER
HEEAEEAETEREE @ MMAKRYNE
BB BERBLIRETREER
BBYA o

RAESRIBTBEFTR GBS LT
BB RImALRR AN MRE) - B2
MAIBAR - HEBR/BB 1308 » ALLA
ZEER A DA mE S EEE - BRItz
S EEEMRZB "EBEEERTERE
11472008,  REZRARATEREIER
BRERENTE -
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HRAGZHE

Si Yuan Foundation Chinese Music Charity Concert

Jointly organized by Nanjing University and the
Society, the Charity Concert was made possible
at the Auditorium of Sha Tin Town Hall by the
generous sponsorship of the Si Yuan Foundation
on The Mother’s Day, 11 May, 2008. We were
honoured to have Dr. and Mrs. Chen Tseng-tao,
Founders of Si Yuan Foundation, Professor Hong
Yinxing, Vice President of Nanjing University, Ms.
Laura Chen, Chair of ZeShan (H.K.) Foundation
and The Hon. Rita FAN HSU Lai-tai, President of
Legislative Council as the Guests of Honour to
officiate the programme.

The Concert raised over HK$2.4 million donation
with the aimed at raising seed funds for the Jockey
Club Cancer Rehabilitation Centre of our Society.
Principal performers were drawn from Nanjing
University’s Traditional Instrument Orchestra, guest
performers were Ms. Cheung Pui-lan, Alice, Mr.
Tse Chun-yan and Mr. Sou Si-tai. The splendid
performance left all the 1,300 audiences deeply
impressed by a memorable evening.

ot I LR 1]

REREEOEZZDRRE@

Si Yuan Foundation Chinese Music Charity Concert
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Acknowledgement Il

Donors of HK$10,000 or more 1 October 2007 — 30 September 2008
20074105 1 H 2200849 H 30 H X #: 510,000 508k DL _E 3% 5

Donors: R mo%%%%ﬁg
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust B EE TGRS E 53,843,442.87
Mrs. Marie Wei Wun Ho and Mr. Shau Wai Lam M) 155 22 N2 M6 55 BR 1,000,000.00
Late Madam Tsui San effuE st 1,000,000.00
S K Yee Medical Foundation AR By L G 852,000.00
Community Chest Hong Kong e N = e 512,400.00
Chun Wo Charitable Foundation Ltd. BHZERSERAH 300,000.00
Anonymous it 44 G 263,200.00
Mr. Ko Tak Yiu [y Y e 230,000.00
Mathews Marine Consultants Ltd. = 204,895.00
Chan Dang Social Services Foundation Ltd. R B 1 R R < 200,000.00
Anonymous - 200,000.00
ZeShan Foundation fe e - et 200,000.00
sanofi-aventis Hong Kong Ltd. L R i S S /A 170,000.00
In memory of the late Au Yuk May — 166,601.80
Muifa Watch Co., Ltd. HRHAERAIR A H] 110,000.00
Dr. Chan Un Chan Ina g2 1 L 100,000.00
Dr. Patrick S.W. Fong - 100,000.00
The S.H. Ho Foundation Ltd. MR 100,000.00
Si Yuan Foundation RS0 8 - e o 100,000.00
In memory of the late Ms Jeanne Tjia [ S N 100,000.00
Wealth Bright Co. Ltd. HBIEHRAH 100,000.00
Merck Sharp & Dohme (Asia) Ltd. FEERID R EER A R A H 76,737.00
Fong’s Family Foundation TS 51,000.00
Mt. Chan Iu Seng R 52 S A 50,000.00
Fong Shu Fook Tong Foundation Jit A L 4 50,000.00
Ms. Hung Diana Wan Ling - 50,000.00
Mt. Hui Bon Hoa, Stephane Bing W Ieh 50,000.00
Mr. Kevin S. Lam MEFE A 50,000.00
Lee Woo Sing - 50,000.00
Oriental Watch Co., Itd. W FITHERAN 50,000.00
Mr. Shum Man Wai Steven B 50,000.00
The Yuen Yuen Institute [B] 2 B¢ 50,000.00
Zhilan Foundation SHiEEed 50,000.00
Pfizer Corporation Hong Kong Ltd. 5 b FR BTl 22 40,700.00
Rockreef Investment = 40,000.00
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Donors:

Holy Cross Church

Fung Yiu King Charitable Foundation Ltd.
Mr. Mak Shiu Kin Michael

Ocean Partners UK Ltd.

Team Bright Corporation Ltd.

Care & Health Ltd.

Caridad Ltd.

Mr. & Mrs. Chan Ping Wah

Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Co. Ltd.

Mzts. Luk Ho Mi Chun

Mrs. Mak Man Yuk Patty

Wai Hung Charitable Foundation Ltd.

Ms. Wong Wai Yee

SOL Ltd.

Anonymous

The Incorporated Trustees of the Zoroastrian Charity
Mr. Luk Chi Cheong

Wai Tak Land Investment & Loan Co, Ltd.
Mr. Tam Shiu Wah

Abbott Laboratories Ltd.

Anonymous

Anonymous

Arjo Far East Ltd.

Bayer Schering Pharma

Mzr. Roger Butt

Ms. Cheung Pui Lan Alice

Mzrs. Choi Ma Oi Kuen

Mr. Chong Claude Yuk Leung & Mrs. Chong Ada Irene
Mrs. Chu Leung Wai Chung Monica

Ms. Wong Fung Yuk Tong Agnes

Dr. Dan Bing Kwan Robert

Dr. Doo King Sing David

Eli Lilly Asia, Inc.

GlaxoSmithKline Ltd.

Hong Kong Communications Equipment Co., Ltd.

Mr. Hong Tse Keung
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Amount (HKS)
BN

34,852.00
30,000.00
30,000.00
23,331.00
22,210.00
20,000.00
20,000.00
20,000.00
20,000.00
20,000.00
20,000.00
20,000.00
20,000.00
17,500.00
16,000.00
16,000.00
15,000.00
15,000.00
12,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
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Amount (HKS)

e

BT
Kennedy Burkill & Sons (HK) Ltd. — 10,000.00
Mzr. Kong Wing On I 7 v 10,000.00
I. & T Charitable Foundation Ltd. BRI S HIR A 10,000.00
Mr. Lai Ying Kam RS 10,000.00
Ms. Felicia Yik Ting Law A2 A 10,000.00
Linson Company Ltd. SERTARR ] 10,000.00
Mr. Lee Kin Fai Andrew Z (e ot 4 10,000.00
Mt. Lee Ming Fai Clarence 2 Ui S 2 10,000.00
Ms. Pei Shek Leun BhnEiat 10,000.00
Pacific Medical (HK) Co. Ltd. T B b4 T WA PR A ) 10,000.00
Prince Jewellery and Watch Company NT-ER B gk A A 10,000.00
Mr. Rusy M Shroff & Mrs. Purviz R Shroff — 10,000.00
Squina International Group Ltd. N R AL B A TR ] 10,000.00
Sum Mei Entertainment Production Ltd. O EMABIEGRA H] 10,000.00
Mt. Tong Chi Chung - 10,000.00
Wei Lun Foundation Ltd. FEmESHERA 10,000.00

We are also grateful to our Hon. Auditors, Chang Leung Hui & Li
C.PA. Limited for auditing our accounts; our Hon. Legal Adviser,
Mr. Steven Shum Man Kwong; the Community Chest of Hong
Kong; the Hospital Authority and the various welfare agencies
for their contribution, co-operation and helpful advice from time
to time.

During the past year, my colleagues in the Committee and
Subcommittees have been very supportive and constructive in
assisting me in discharging my duties. | wish to thank each and
everyone of them from the bottom of my heart for their valuable
assistance, co-operation, and counsel. | also wish to thank the
voluntary workers for their selfless contribution in making the
patients’ lives much more pleasant. Last but not least, | would
like to thank the Society’s staff for their loyalty and dedication.
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Ko Wing Man =% 94
Chairman

The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society
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Honorary Treasurer’s Report

THE HONG KONG ANTI-CANCER SOCIETY ik

REPORT OF THE HONORARY TREASURER %% v Jili $li 3
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008 i 5200843 H 31 H 4E s

During the year the Society had received donations and grant
from the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust, the Community
Chest of Hong Kong, our members and the general public totaling
$59.93M. The major outgoings were: $48.48M for the Hong
Kong Anti-Cancr Society Jockey Club Cancer Rehabilitation
Centre project; $3.52M for the betterment and medical assistance
for cancer patients; $1.32M for Cancer Education; $0.54M
for supporting Cancer Research; $0.45M for Recreational &
Diversional Therapy Unit; $2.07M for general administration, and
$0.43M for other special purposes (Volunteers’ Fund etc); totaling
$56.81M. Together with interest received and sundry income of
$1.20M, the net cash funds of the Society have increased about
$4.32M.

AEEASOHESHERERESRER
AEE  BEEARE - AGGENATHN
BRMERBEREBEAATNAANTZE
TC ° A RERHNT ABE+/\ETH
REABMESESSRERESRL =8
A+"BTHRENRERAREZERER
&Y, —A= T B fEE#E At
WERREEEMT W+hBTAR
BRLE/NE MASHNITHREXEZR
FLERTAEMESBINETESF)N
MR AN+ =BT ; LAEHH
AFTRABNT—HRET - BRAMNEMEM
WARN—B_tBx aEFEAREH
MY HWNAE=1t_8TiFRE -

= o LA 4R

Hong Kong, 8 December 2008
i > 2008:F12FI8H

Edwin Chiu Ngar-wing i f{i 5
Honorary Treasurer %155 ri) i
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THE HONG KONG ANTI-CANCER SOCIETY
(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)
REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31st MARCH, 2008
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Financial Report | Bf %5

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE’S REPORT iy ZE & Z [T

The members of the Executive Committee present their annual
report together with the audited financial statements of the
Society for the year ended 31st March, 2008.

Principal activity FHE{GH)
The Society continues to undertake activities against cancers.

Results HEH

The results of the Society for the year ended 31st March, 2008
are set out in the Society’s Administration Fund income and
expenditure account on page 62.

Property, plant and equipment W3 ~ 3l Sz 4

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are
shown in note 3 to the financial statements.

Executive Committee ¥ifrZZE &

The following are current members of the Executive Committee,
having served throughout the year, except as indicated:

Chairman FJi: Dr. Ko Wing Man
Vice-Chairman Fil] 3 Ji: Dr. Poon Yeuk Foo
Honorary Secretary 3555 b 35: Mr. Davie Au-Yeung Tsan Pong

Honorary Treasurer %55 ) Jii: M. Edwin Chiu Ngar Wing
Mrs. Chu Yeung Pak Yu, Patricia, BB.S.
Dr. Daniel Chua Tsin Tien
Dr. Law Chun Key
Dr. Anne Lee Wing Mui
Dr. Pamela Leung
Mers. Selina Lo
Ms. Alisha Ma
Dr. Tung Yuk
Dr. Elizabeth Wang Ming Chun, S.B.S.
Mrs. Agnes Wong
Dr. Anthony Ying Chi Ho
Dr. Hubert Chan
Mr. John Wong
Mr. Shum Man Kwong
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE’S REPORT W f7Z& 8 & 2 i

In accordance with Article 53 of the Society’s Articles of
Association, the current members of the Executive Committee
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

REAEGQAAERELSH » BERTE
B EREREBFRGEHTH » 4
BEE - JERREE -

Executive Committee’s interests in contracts ¥fTZR B & 2 &4kt

No contract of significance, to which the Society and members
of the Executive Committee had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

Auditors %L

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. Chang
Leung Hui & Li C.P.A. Limited, Certified Public Accountants, who
retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

RERBREEFENRN  TEFEBER
AEENBEAGRATEEGHEANZ
BREANERELN -

AU BHEARRFZTFAMEBATAR
NEEZ - WEREHW - WEEE - IF

EXRE-

On behalf of the Executive Committee

HRETTR B G

A A

HONG KONG, 25TH SEPTEMBER, 2008
i » 200849 25H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B

Financial Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HONG KONG ANTI-CANCER SOCIETY
(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

B AE W8 € o5 6 B B B
(DAHEGRIE 2R T ik R SL I A BR 2y w])

We have audited the financial statements of The Hong Kong
Anti-Cancer Society set out on pages 61 to 73, which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31st March, 2008, and the income and
expenditure account, statement of changes in accumulated
funds and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

AKZEMETRETEBHEZTNE
61EEF73EBFEEZE2008F3A31HZ
EESE AFENWAESTE - 2BE
SHEFHLEESNESFREENTESE
BUR R EMBERIBFI AV B -

Executive Committee’s responsibility for the financial statements

T 22 B 6 B RS 1 2T

The Executive Committee are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility 1535 il ) i WA 45 #R R 1 S AT

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our auditin accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

HTREQARERREABTEIMNAD
BIH (BB BREEN) & (BBEA
ARG CIRERERREBENTHY
Bk - EEEBRERE - RITHERHE
BAR A ER B LUR R E BB A TR B
x  NERERNRSRMEZEERERAL
ZENEASERETBUR » LB
BRTMEHEERRIAEMGE -

AEZEEMNEERRERME LIFE
KRBV BRERBRER - ZR (BB
NEGEOY 14115 - EREBLEEEE
wE BRIz A BHRRAEEME
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HONG KONG ANTI-CANCER SOCIETY
(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

B wE i € o5 & BB LB U
(DAEGRIE 2R 7 ik ik S 1 A BR 23 6]

Auditors’ responsibility %5 il ¥ B 553022 11 EH AT (continued 28 1ij E)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Executive Committee, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion & Kl

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of the Society’s affairs as at 31st March, 2008 and of
its results and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BN ITFEERATER - LG EM
BHRREAENBEMNKNENSERE -
BFRBEZIURN A BB A E - 8%
BB R HRER 2SR AR T 25 22 85 3R BRI AY BB
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/

HONG KONG, 25TH SEPTEMBER, 2008
it » 20085E9H25H
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CHANG LEUNG HUI & LI C.PA. LIMITE

Certified Public Accountants
FIERSE Gl i

E SRR TR E e el A
Edmond Chi Kong Leung
Practising Certificate Number P1353
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2008
FEBEE20085E3H 31 H Ak BAE A ik

Financial Report

2008 2007
Note HKS$ HKS$
Non-current assets JERE B
Property, plant and equipment W ~ B I M 3 61,236,164 17,202,810
Current assets & e
Other receivables BER S 5,500 5,500
Bank balances and cash BUTEERR & 4 33,844,538 29,527,166
33,850,038 29,532,666
Net assets B e i 95,086,202 46,735,476
Financed by : g .
Capital control account E A Gl iR 5 61,236,164 17,202,810
Society’s administration fund BB ITREES - 261,618
Funds received for special purposes R34 6 31,103,056 27,531,500
General reserve fund 0 0 7 2,746,982 1,739,548
Approved and authorised for issue 20085925 H
by the Executive Committee on wWiIrEEe
25th September 2008 A B e
A HIE =i
Chairman FJ§ Honorary Treasurer 3§55 ri) i 95,086,202 46,735,476

7 it i i
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SOCIETY’S ADMINISTRATION FUND

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008

FAFECE20084-3 H 31 H k€851 7 B0 BN B 52 HE WA 3¢

Income

Donations

Grant from the Community Chest
of Hong Kong

Membership subscriptions

Other income

Regrouping of Fund

Interest received

Expenditure

Electricity

Equipment

Fuel and gas

Incidental expenses
Insurance

Miscellaneous expenses
Printing and stationery
Provident fund
Publication and advertisement
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries

Subscriptions and books
Telephone and postage
Travelling expenses
Water

(Deficit) /Sutplus for the year

Balance brought forward

Deficit absorbed by general reserve
fund

Balance carried forward
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2008 2007
Note HKS$ HK$
Y AW HEW
10,500 140,000
200,000 200,000
600 1,100
47,600 23,700
18,414 -
1,154,475 648,837
1,431,589 1,013,637
- 16,236
10,079 -
24,693 25,824
580,520 299,939
15,717 14,371
41,602 28,623
149,108 50,201
57,796 10,000
32,738 18,195
450 2,380
1,061,966 192,839
27,574 41,415
43,831 30,286
25,176 21,629
- 81
2,071,250 752,019
( 639,661) 261,618
261,618 >
( 378,043) 261,618
7 378,043 =
- 261,618




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008
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Balance at 1st April, 2006
Surplus for the year
Transfer

Increase during the year

Decrease during the year

Balance at 1st April, 2007
Deficit for the year
Transfer

Increase during the year
Decrease during the year

Regrouping of funds

Balance at 31st March, 2008

1.4.2006 #565%
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Capital Funds General Society’s Total

control received reserve admini- &%
account  for special fund tration
H7s purposes AT fund
Fnk  fEE AT

HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$

(NotezEF#S)  (Noteskf#6) (NoterkFE7)

17,513,165 23,779,936 1,438,886 - 42,731,987

: - - 261,618 261,618

- 819,906 ( 819,906) - -

276,019 18,945,447 1,120,568 - 20,342,034

( 586,374)  (16,013,789) - - (16,600,163)

17,202,810 27,531,500 1,739,548 261,618 46,735,476

- - - (639,661)  ( 639,661)

- 178,315 ( 556,358) 378,043 -

49,904,730 58,365,960 1,354,977 - 109,625,667

(5,871,376) (54,745,490) - - (60,616,866)

- ( 227,229) 208,815 - ( 18,414)

61,236,164 31,103,056 2,746,982 - 95,086,202
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008
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(Increase)/Decrease in :

Other receivables

Increase/(Decrease) in :

Society’s administration fund
Funds received for special purposes
General reserve fund

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

Analysis of the balances of
cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash
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2008 2007
HK$ HKS$
3,738,550

( 261,618) 261,618
3,571,556 3,751,564
1,007,434 300,662
4,317,372 8,052,394
29,527,166 21,474,772
33,844,538 29,527,166
33,844,538 29,527,166




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008
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1. Society information 2 ] & F}

The Society is incorporated in Hong Kong and is limited
by guarantee. It is a charitable body engaged in the
undertaking of activities against cancers.

The registered office of the Society is located at 30 Nam
Long Shan Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong.

2. Principal accounting policies - ¥2 ¢ | 5 I

(2)

(b)

Statement of compliance 3% I H & I

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which term
collectively include all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong (“HKGAAP”) and the requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation %5 JL#E

The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis.

The Society has not yet applied the new HKFRSs that
have been issued but not yet effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2008. The
Executive Committee anticipate that the adoption of
these new HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
financial statements.

Revenue recognition I A HfE %

Donations, grants and membership subscriptions are
recognised when the amounts are received.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the applicable
interest rates.
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Principal accounting policies - B &5} 5l (continued £ |1 H)
Property, plant and equipment P3¢ ~ 5l f2 3544

(d)

®

Additions to property, plant and equipment are
charged to the income and expenditure account of
the respective funds when incurred. For the purpose
of control, additions to property, plant and equipment
are also recorded in capital control account and are
carried in the balance sheet.

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the costs of
assets less their estimated residual value, if any, on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life as
follows :

Buildings #)2£

ME - REERBVNABEESBERESN
WXRATIE - BT HELRH - XK
RN AREREARGRDPIECHLE
EERERTHHN -

B E & E S R E KA R E REITE MR
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FEZHERLEHEEENRE - BItYx -
R R AR M AR R ELAG R AT 62 A A BB R AR AR
HEER  DEREZR TR

Over the remaining unexpired terms of the respective lease

FBRANRIERREI IR

Furniture and equipment £ {8 3% {5 25%
Leasehold improvement #2245 10%
Motor vehicles /5§ & 25%

The residual value and the useful life of an item or a
group of assets are reviewed at least annually at each
financial year-end.

The Society assesses at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that any items of property,
plant and equipment may be impaired and that an
impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an item
may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
company estimates the recoverable amount of the
item. An impairment loss, being the amount by which
the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, or a reversal
of impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
capital control account.

Gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item
of property, plant and equipment is included in the
capital control account when the item is derecognised
and is determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of
the item.

Taxation FiJH

The Society is a charitable body and is exempted from
Hong Kong Taxation by virtue of Section 88 of the
Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Retirement benefit costs ZE A {5 [l 28

Payment to the defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme are charged as an expense as they fall due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008
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Property, plant and equipment P3¢ ~ 5l Sz 24

3.
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Land and Motor Furniture Leasehold Total
buildings vehicle and improvement &t
LY ¥ equipment L/
ERIEN 1

2008
Cost i+
At 1.4.2007 &5 p% 18,006,121 1 300,431 - 18,306,553
Additions B3R - - 2,001,640 47,903,090 49,904,730
At 31.3.2008 &L fig 18,006,121 1 2,302,071 47,903,090 68,211,283
Accumulated depreciation ZfE 185
At 1.4.2007 5585 1,016,816 - 86,927 - 1,103,743
Charge for the year AVIEEPH% 508,408 : 572,659 4,790,309 5,871,376
At 31.3.2008 5% 1,525,224 - 659,586 4,790,309 6,975,119
Net book value I [ i3+
At 31.3.2008 &5k 16,480,897 1 1,642,485 43,112,781 61,236,164
2007
Cost Jik 7~
At 1.4.2006 #& fig 18,006,121 1 24,412 - 18,030,534
Additions ¥4 - ; 276,019 : 276,019
At 31.3.2007 &L fig 18,006,121 1 300,431 - 18,306,553
Accumulated depreciation Z 5185
At 1.4.2006 &L fig 508,408 - 8,961 - 517,369
Chatrge for the year ANSEEE B2 508,408 - 77,966 - 586,374
At 31.3.2007 &L fig 1,016,816 - 86,927 - 1,103,743
Net book value [ [ i+
At 31.3.2007 £5f5 16,989,305 1 213,504 - 17,202,810

The land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong. The
land is leased from the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“HKSAR”) and can be terminated in twelve
months’ notice when the land is required by HKSAR for
public purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008
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4. Bank balances and cash #1745 g 2 Bl &

2008 2007
Fixed and call deposits SE W B R AR 28,664,867 14,096,487
Savings accounts A 3,623,141 9,625,755
Current accounts AR P 1,547,530 5,795,924
Petty cash LHB$ 9,000 9,000
33,844,538 29,527,166

Capital control account B A gt bl g
2008 2007
Balance brought forward G i 17,202,810 17,513,165
Purchase of fixed assets I 1 e E e 49,904,730 276,019
Depreciation charge for the year  ASSEFEHPT ( 5,871,376) ( 586,374)
Balance carried forward N AL i 61,236,164 17,202,810
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008

FAEECE20084E3 0 31 H R MR EERE

6.

Funds received for special purposes %553 < (continued$Z | E)

Dnations EiE]i
Grants from the Community HHBA TR
Chest of Hong Kong

Grants from the Hong Kong  HEHEBEEEEGGT

Jockey Club Charities Trust EEER
Others H Atk

No emoluments, pensions or compensation for loss of office
were paid or any present or past members of the Executive
Committee for both years.

Total staff costs for the year amounting to HK$3,855,938
(2007: HK$3,155,599) were included in expenditure.

Included in the total staff costs, HK$322,976 (2007:
HK$315,386) represents the contribution payable to the
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes by the Society
in respect of the current accounting year.

General Reserve Fund 3% 3 {3 fii

Balance brought forward AR BR

Regroup of fund from Society’s ¢ El 75 s P Jii €£74038
40th Anniversary Fund SEEE S E A B
Fund transferred to Cancer [ AJREEE T
Education Fund (Note 8) GGERE 8)

Donations a3

Fund transferred to Society’s A SFBITEEES

Administration Fund
Other income received H A A

Balance carried forward N &L 5

70 The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society

2008 2007
HKS$ HKS$
8,559,815 7,998,504
1,114,500 1,259,000
48,573,681 9,178,569
117,964 509,374
58,365,960 18,945,447

BELAFEHEZNEAWNE - RASHK
BRAEECHRAEUBMENRTEE SN

= o

AEEBERAETEAESZ HIRIER » BE A
78 153,855,9387T (200744 7513,155,5997T) ©

B S A B IESI83229767T (20074 A B
315,3867T) AASHEAEEMELEH-FURRR
EET 2R ERNEM EET M IAIAREE -

2008 2007
HKS$ HK$
1,739,548 1,438,886
208,815 -

( 178,315) ( 819,906)
1,354,977 915,898
( 378,043) -
- 204,670
2,746,982 1,739,548
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008

AAEBE20085E3 1) 31 H Ik iRk RE

Cancer Education Fund JSIE 26 i E

2008 2007
Balance brought forward AR R - -
Regrouping of fund L 80,029 -
80,029 -
Income : WA -
Donations HX 302,841 114,793
Other income H A A 111,618 101,203
Grant from the Community Chest HiATE T 642,000 809,000
of Hong Kong
Receipt of royalty fee BB s 1,028 607
Sale of cancer books B R I A 5,318 1,058
1,062,805 1,026,661
Expenditure : Y
Cancer course and seminars R EH 2,850 16,320
Equipment VA ] 450 -
Incidental expenses HAth Y H 130,732 21,567
Insurance iy 5,717 8,402
Miscellaneous expenses e 5,548 46,327
Printing and stationery Ei iz e 2 18,640 45,884
Provident fund AR 106,588 195,732
Publication and advertisement W B s % B¢ 165,126 65,800
Repairs and Maintenance R YN 2,100 -
Salaries e 869,407 1,435,400
Telephone and postage Bl N 9,418 10,040
Travelling expenses i 4,573 1,095
1,321,149 1,846,567
Fund transferred from General T (i . RERET) 178,315 819,906
Reserve Fund (Note 7)
Balance carried forward ANAE 45 B - -

7% i i 9
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008
FAEER20085E3 ) 31 H IR MRS GERE

9.

Recreational and Diversional Therapy Unit Fund 4475 %L S

Balance brought forward

Income :

Donations
Grant from the Community Chest
of Hong Kong

Expenditure :

Incidental expenses
Insurance
Miscellaneous expenses
Printing and stationery
Program expenses
Provident fund

Salaries

Telephone and postage
Travelling expenses

Balance carried forward

72 The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society
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2008 2007
HKS$ HKS$
182,108 118,738
9,740 61,400
472,500 450,000
482,240 511,400
- 94
1,624 2,112
76 6,499
1,462 1,400
24,921 20,633
47,986 49,854
371,310 360,240
2,503 3,258
4,234 3,940
454,116 448,030
210,232 182,108




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008
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10.

Financial Report

Cancer Rehabilitation Centre Fund & JFEEH PO IE S

Balance brought forward

Income :

Donations from The Hong Kong
Jockey Club Charities Trust

Less : Expenditure

Construction work
Consultancy fees
Equipments

Furniture and fixtures
Incidental expenses
Insurance
Miscellaneous expenses
Printing and stationery
Provident fund

Rent and rates

Repairs and maintenance
Salaries

Telephone and postage
Utilities

Balance carried forward

R R

WA

HERLGRBEN
R FAEE]

¥z

TR
TR BNE
WE i
325
HA=Z

ASEERRBR

2008 2007
HK$ HKS$

( 478,449) ( 521,061)
48,174,681 8,779,569
43,565,090 4,338,000
1,255,742 2,479,000
1,725,028 247,868
15,360 -
28,326 249,117
19,907 14,802
14,016 147,800
43,847 23,806
95,911 45,400
296,447 257,922

- 91,094
1,413,662 714,934
4,960 3,340
1,075 123,874
48,479,371 8,736,957
( 783,139) ( 478,449)

7% i i 9
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DESCRIPTION OF THE USAGE OF FUNDS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008

AAEECE20085E3 H) 31 H IR IGERE

Name of fund L E 48 Usage of fund 35 HI#%

Building Redevelopment Fund For Nam Long Hospital extension projects

A AL JHRS e BT o i -2

Betterment Fund for Cancer Patients To provide financial assistance to cancer patients

PR AN RS ) S JHR TR Aa T N 1 B0 B

Cancer Detection and Prevention Fund To be used for cancer detection and prevention projects

JaE g R T e I < JHR g % 0 K D

Cancer Education Fund To meet operating costs for cancer education activities

T B E R JHR S A RRE 207 6 B I A8 88 AR

Cancer Research Fund To be used for cancer research projects and related expenses

P 7E L 5 JHR SRR Fe T 80 B AH Bl 1 52 Hi

Recreational and Diversional Therapy Unit Fund To meet operating costs for running the Recreational and
AR IS Diversional Therapy Unit

R S A R G HR N I A 88 A

Special Hospice Care Fund To meet the running costs of hospice cate service

EH R JHR S AT 2 MBS (2 1 JRe AR

Volunteers’ Fund To meet operating costs for running volunteers’ program

#LEE JHR S A 38 5T B A8 AR

Cancer Rehabilitation Centre Fund donated by To meet the project costs of the establishment of the Cancer
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Rehabilitation Centre.

FEE HEE O EEE PR % S P e AR O s I B 2
(HFBELTZESEESHEY

Cancer Rehabilitation Centre Development Fund ~ To meet the development and running costs of the Cancer
FERE e O RS R B S Rehabilitation Centre
JH DS A e R ORI B 2 e 28 2

General Reserve Fund To meet the deficits of funds

2 it JH T 568 06 65 5 1 T B <2 B R AR L B I R

Supportive Medical Assistance Progrmme To provide financial assistance to cancer patients in accordance
WEE s N\ 28 B B - ) with specific criteria

R ¥ H 2 e s A S8 S BUE B

ik AR JARPE T SRR AN SO > AR SO B JE » I DASESCRRAS 2 ¥ o

74 The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society



P ]38 Az 4l 2 By

Lo PRI AFLES -
ZENZELATHIE -

HEPiEE 75



EEETYUR B LE =155
30 Nam Long Shan Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong
A5 Enquiry: 3921 3821 #dik Website: www.hkacs.org.hk






